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CLARE COUNTY
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

225 West Mazin Street, P.O. Box 438 Harrison, Ml 48825
Ph; (989) 539-7436 Fax (989) 539-2588
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District 4, JACK KLEINHARDT bistrict 5; DONALD DAVID District 60 KAREN LIPOVSKY District 7: JAMES GELIOS

May 22, 2007

The Honorable Chairperson and
Members of the Board of Commissioners
Clare County

Harrison, Michigan

The Office of County Administrator is pleased to submit the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for
the County of Clare, Michigan for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2006.

This report is published {o provide the Board of Commissioners, County staff, our cilizens, our bondholders and
other interested parties with detailed information concerning the financial condition and activities of County
government. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the presented data and the completeness and fairness of
the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the County.

This is the third year that the County of Clare is presenting its financial statements in a Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report and the third year that the County has prepared its financial statements in accordance with
Statement No. 34 of the Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB #34) entitled “Basic Financial
Statements and Management's Discussion and Analysis. for State and Local Governments.” Previously, the
financial statements provided information about individual funds of the County. These funds established by the
County show restrictions on planned use of resources or. to measure, in the short term, the. revenues and
expenditures arising from municipal activities. While some of the statements in the Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report remain on an individual fund basis, GASB #34 required government-wide financial statements,
which were prepared using full accrual accounting for all governmental activities. These statements at the
government-wide level will help readers assess the finances of the government in its entirety, determine if the
County's overall financial position improved or deteriorated, and see how the County invested in capital assets
like water mains, sewers, parks, etc. The government-wide statements are aimed at viewing the County as a
whole from a long-term perspeclive.

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) requires .that management provide 2 narrative introduction,
overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management's Discussion
and Analysis (MD&A)}. This letter of transmittal is designed to compliment the MD&A and should be read in
conjunction with it. Clare County's MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the independent
auditors. :

THE REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES

Leocation

Clare County is located in the central part of Lower Michigan. Harrison is the county seat with a unique
transportation activity as the hub of the US-127, US-10 and M-115 intersections which provide ready access to
the northern portion of Michigan's lower peninsuta and make travel to Detroit, Chicago, Cleveland, indianapolis,
and other major metropolitan markets simple and easy. in addition, the Michigan Department of Transportation
(MDOT) multi-year upgrade of US-127/US-10 totaled $5 million and prepared Clare County to accommodate
present and future transportation needs. The County encompasses an area of approximately 576 square miles,
has a population of approximately 31,252.

The Caunly of Clare does not discriminale on he basis of race, color, national origin, sex, religion, age or disability in emplayment or the provision of services.
-fi-



The County operates under the State of Michigan and is a Commission-Manager form of government. The
County Commission is comprised of the seven Commissioners elected on a partisan basis for terms of two years
from single member districts. The Board of Commissioners elects from its ranks a Chairperson and Vice-
Chairperson by majority vote. The Board of Commissioners primary functions include adoption of local laws and
policies, determination of the fype and level of County services, adoption of the County budget, equalization of
County property values, legislative oversight of County services and the appointment of various board,
commissions and County officials.

The administration of the County, other than as delegated to certain elected officials, falls to the County
Administrator who is appointed by the County Board of Commissioners. The County Administrator also
coordinates activities with the six elected county offices of Clerk/Register, Treasurer, Prosecuting Attorney,
Sheriff, Drain Commissioner and Surveyor, who are all elected at-large for four-year terms on a partisan basis.

Additionally, the County Administrator maintains communications with the three courts (Circuit, Probate and
District) each headed by an elected judge who serves a six-year nonpartisan term. Clare County and Gladwin
County are equally respensible for adequately funding the three courts offices.

The Basic Financial Statements of the County include all government activities, organizatiohs and functions for
which the County is financially accountable as defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.

Services Provided

The County provides a full range of services that are either mandated by State statute, or authorized by the
County Board of Commissioners. These services are carried out by its approximately 105 full-time and 65 part-
time employees and include legislative, judicial, public safety, public works, health, welfare, cultural, capital
improvements and general administrative services.

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the Clare County's financial planning and control. Budget-to-
actual comparisons are provided in this report for each individual governmental fund for which an appropriated
annual budget has been formally adopted. For the general fund, this comparison begins on page 51 as required
supplementary information. For other governmental funds, other than the general fund, with appropriated annual
budgets, this comparison is presented either as required supplementary information (for major funds), starting on
page 57, or other supplementary information (for nonmajer funds), starting on page 74.

FACTORS AFFECTING FINANCIAL CONDITION

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is considered from the
broader perspective of the specific environment within which the Clare County operates.

Local Economy

Clare County's economy traces back to its eariy origins in the 1800’s when lumbering was an early economic
driver. The Flint & Pere Marquette Railroad began in Clare County in 1870 and furthered the County's
population expansion. The lumbermen made the quickest and heaviest impact on our forest resources. Utilizing
the Muskegon River, a major river tributary running through northwest Clare County, tens of thousands of logs
were transported to market.

After the timber was gone, homesteader/farmers began nurturing the soil back to productivity. During the 1930’s
large oil fields were discovered and developed with capital supplied by various sorts of businessmen.

Into the 21™ century, Clare County has become one of Michigan's favorite residential areas reflected by the
County’s 25% population growth from 1990 to 2000 and ranks in the top ten counties in growth rate in the state.
The County is now known for hunting, fishing, snowmobiling, golfing, and other recreational activities.

Clare County is located in the central Michigan region, the geographic center of Michigan’s lower peninsula,
which is surrounded by the world’s largest reserve of fresh water. The area offers a unique lifestyle beasting the
warmth and safety of many small communities of distinctive character - each proud of its pristine surroundings,
local festivals, specialty shops and area charm. Fortunate to experience the magnificence of all four seasons,
the inhabitants of Clare County take pleasure in the many experiences of the great outdoors. |n addition, Clare
County offers a broad-based environment usually found in much larger counties, with nearby Mid Michigan
Community College and neighboring Isabella County's Central Michigan University and the Soaring Eagle Casino
and Resort. Clare County is within a 3-hour drive of every major market in Michigan and is linked to one of the
largest industrial and consumer markets in the United States.



The City of Clare, the largest cily in the County, is known statewide as the "Gateway to the North." Clare is an
ideal location for family living, which boasts such amenities as: bountiful hunting, fishing, and wildlife adventures,
proximity to some 150 named lakes, exciting ski facilities, pleasant subdivisions, and an excellent school system.

The City of Harrison is the Clare County seat and supports an unlimited availability of year-round water related
activities. It is also known for its outdoor activities including camping, golfing, skiing, and snowmobiling. [t is
truly a recreationat paradise for both seasonal visitors and residents.

The Village of Farwell, located on the southern border of Clare County, was established in 1870 along the Pere
Marquette Railroad line. The village still retains its small town atmosphere, is supported by small businesses
and several manufacturing firms, and plays a role in local tourism due to its proximity to lakes and skiing. It is
also the site of a tax-free, industrial Renaissance Zone.

The County of Clare is rich with quality educational opportunities. All communities in Clare County provide the
choice of excellent public and private schools, area vocational centers, and alternative education programs.

The County’s crown jewel is Mid Michigan Community College, a recognized leader in educational and
community leadership. The College provides post-secondary education and services to enable students and the
community to achieve success in a global society. A key asset to the business community is the Technical
Training Center (M-TEC) of Mid Michigan Community College. The focus of training in the M-TEC center is the
industrial and construction trades. Industrial training components include pneumatics, hydrauiics,
instrumentation, electrical controls and pipe fitting. In the construction trades, training is provided in carpentry,
electrical, masonry, and plumbing. A key to the instructional delivery in the M-TEC is providing learners with a
variety of instructional delivery systems. Units of instruction are developed that cover the skills specifically
identified as critical by business and industry.

Clare County supports a 64-bed hospital, Mid Michigan Medical Center - Clare, where services are offered that
are reflective of a rural, primary care hospital. Inpatient care includes special units for intensive, progressive,
obstetrical and pediatric care, as well as for medical and surgical care. The Medical Center provides 24-hour
emergency room coverage and services including radiology, nuclear medicine, Laboratory, Ulirasound, CT
scanning, Rehabilitation services, Outpatient surgery including general, gynecological and ophthalmology.

The citizens of Clare County take great pride in their community and are committed to maintaining the area’s
high standard of economic excellence. With a strong business climate, a central and convenient location with
quick access to nearby major markets, significant interaction with Central Michigan University and proximity to
Michigan's favorite vacationlands, Clare County is an ideal place to live, to work, and to “grow” a business.

Clare County's tax base has grown steadily in the last few years and is a sign of the strong economy. From
2008 to 20086, the County's taxable value increased from $886.7 million to $822.2 million, a 6.4% increase.

However, Clare County does have its challenges. Unemployment in Clare County is historically above the
statewide average. In 2005, Clare County's unemployment rate stood at 9.3% while the State was at 7.3%. In
2006, Clare County's unemployment rate increased to 10.2% while the state figure was 6.9%.

As a result of Clare County's designation as an Enterprise Zone Community by the U.S. Department of
Agriculture - Rural Development Office (USDA-RD), the County has taken advantage of regional economic
development opportunities and participates in a two-county economic development organization called Middle
Michigan Development Corporation that provides quality economic development services to Clare and Isabella
County organizations. Additionally, the Enterprise Zone designation has opened up a host of USDA-RD grant
and loan resources.

Long-term Financial Planning

The Clare County Board of Commissioners recognizes the need for long-term planning by annually helding a
series of planning sessions that result in the County’s Strategic Plan. The 2005-2006 Plan recognized the
importance of the human resource base of the County organization and addressed issue affecting the employee
workforce.



Cash Management Policies and Practices

The County maintains depository accounts with four {4) banks and two (2) investment firms. The County holds a
minimum amount of cash in checking accounts to meet operational needs. The remaining idle cash is invested
by County officials in certificates of deposit and other investments as allowed by Michigan Compiled Law and the
County's investment policy. The ending balance of the County’s investment portfolio for fiscal year 2006 was
approximately $3,837,503. The overall portfolio provided $417,565 in investment income.

In compliance with the County’s investment policy, the County Treasurer is responsible for its implementation
and reports to the County Commission summarizing the investment activity, investment income earned, and the
investments on hand at quarter end as required. The reports also compare the investment return with budgetary
expeciations and suggest improvements that might be made in the investment program.

MAJOR INITIATIVES
Property Tax Shift-State Revenue Sharing

State legislation was enacted to shift the County's property tax collection timing from a December to a July basis.
By advancing the collection of county property taxes, counties are receiving a one-time windfall that is set-aside
in a reserved fund and withdrawals are aliowed up to the annual amounts that the state would have sent counties
under the state revenue sharing formula. The legislation allowed the state to pause its payment of revenue
sharing funds to counties that resulted in a significant budgetary lightening in light of the state's severe financial
situation.

Technology

Recent progress has been made to mare {ully utilize the geographic information system capabilities. The County
continues to inventory its technology needs in order to plan for replacement subject to funding availability.

Central Dispatch/E9-1-1 Improvements

Financed through a special voter approved millage of 0.35 mills over a five-year pericd, construction was
completed on an approximately $600,000 addition to the existing Sheriff's Department to house the emergency
dispatch operations previously housed in a small office in the existing Sheriff's Department. The project also
involved updating the various dispatch and communications equipment that is projected to cost an additional
$300,000 with funding to come from the aforementioned millage.

Employee Health Insurance Cost Reductions

From 2001 to 2005, employee health insurance premiums have skyrocketed an average of 20% for family
coverage. In 2008, health care costs appear to be leveling off with an only 5% projected increase in FY 2007
rales as compared to FY 2006. The County continues to review all aspects of employee health insurance in
order to realize cost containment.

Sheriff’s Department Road Patro! Car Replacement Policy

The Sheriff's Department road patrol cars had in excess of 250,000 miles prior to their replacement while law
enforcement standards called for the need for replacement at 180,000. After a two-year phase-in, Clare County
was able to develop a replacement schedule whereby patrol cars are replaced at 180,000 in 2005 and continues
this policy into 2007.

OTHER INFORMATION

Independent Audit

The County is required by state statute fo undertake an annual audit of the bocks of financial statements of the

County by independent certified public accountants selected by the County Commission. This requirement has
been complied with, and the independent auditor's report has been included in this report.

- -



Awards and Acknowiedgments

Clare County is submitting for the first time its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report {CAFR) to the
Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA)} Certificate of Achievement
for Excellence in Financial Reporting award program faor the fiscal year ended Septemnber 30, 2006. In order to
be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently
organized CAFR. This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal
requirements.

It is management's contention that the current comprehensive annual financial report meets the Certificate of
Achievement program’s requirements and therefore it is has been submitted to the GFOA to determine its
eligibility.

The preparation of this report on a timely basis could not have been accomplished without the efficient and
dedicated services of the entire staff of the Treasurer's Office and the Accounis Payable/Payroll Division of the
Clerk/Register’s Office. Finally, special thanks needs to be given to Tracy Byard, Administrative Assistant in the
County Administrator's Office for her true dedication and commitment to Clare County. | also wish to express
our sincere appreciation to County Department Heads, Elected Officials and the Judiciary throughout the
organization, especially those who were instrumental in the successful completion of this report.

| would like to thank the members of the County Commission for their interest and support in planning and
conducting the financial operation of the County in a responsible and progressive manner.

Respectfully submitted,
<, T

otd 8. 20075

Randolph D. Terronez
County Administrator
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Commissioners
of Clare County
Harrison, Michigan

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental aclivities, the business-type activities,
the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of Clare County, Michigan, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2006, which collectively
comprise the County's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are
the responsibility of Clare County's management. Qur responsibility is to express opinions on these financial
statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the Clare County Road Commission,
which represents 86% and 86%, respeclively of the total assets and revenues of the component units and the
Fublic Transit Corporation, which represents 33% and 76%, respectively of the total assets and revenues of the
business-type funds. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose report thereon has been
furnished to us, and ocur opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the Road Commission and Public
Transit Corporation, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governmen! Audiling Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit {o obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We belteve that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented
component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund infarmation of Clare County, Michigan, as of
September 30, 2006, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows, thereof for
the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May 22, 2007 on our
consideration of Clare County's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should
be considered in assessing the results of our audit

The management's discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information, as identified in the table of
contents, are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain limited
procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and
presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no
opinion on it.

East Lansing = Rochester Hills = St. Johns
- viii -



Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
Clare County’s basic financial statements. The accompanying other supplementary information, as identified in the
table of contents, is presented for the purpose of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial
statements. Except for the stalistical section, other supplementary information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The statistical section has not been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we
express no opinion on it.

Clmchosn & Hdfran, R.c.

ABRAHAM & GAFFNEY, P.C.
Certified Public Accountants

May 22, 2007
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Clare County, Michigan
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Year Ended September 30, 2006

As management of the County of Clare, Michigan, we offer readers of the County’s financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the County for the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2006. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in
conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in the accompanying basic firancial
statements.

Financial Highlights

e The assets of the primary govemment exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent
fiscal year by $14,513,927 (net assets). Of this amount, $9,167,428 (unrestricted net assets)
may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

o The primary government’s total net assets increased by $1,177,109. This increase was largely
due to growth in property taxes, departments controlling expenditures, and a shift of the
property tax levy from winter to summer resulting in increasing the Revenue Sharing Reserve
Fund.

o As of the close of the current fiscal year, the County of Clare’s governmental activities reported
ending net assets of $8,084,563, an increase of $2,184,372 in comparison with the prior year.
Approximately 50 percent of this total amount, 34,072,768, is available for spending at the
government’s discretion (unrestricted net assets).

« At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved and undesignated fund balance for the general
fund was $1,957,223, or approximately 17 percent of total general fund expenditures {Total
Expenditures and Other Financing Uses).

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the County of Clare’s basic
financial statements. These statements are comprised of three components: 1} government-wide
financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report
also contains required and other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial
statements themselves.

Government-Wide Financial Statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to
provide readers with a broad overview of the County of Clare’s finances, in a manner similar to a
private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the County of Clare’s assets and liabilities,
with the difference between the two reported as ner assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net
assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the County of Clare is
improving or deteriorating.



Clare County, Michigan
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Year Ended September 30, 2006

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net assets changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying
event giving rise to the change occurs, regardiess of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues
and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future
fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

The government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the County of Clare that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and
charges (business-type activities). Governmental activities include general govermnment, public safety,
public works, health and welfare, community and economic development, recreation and cultural and
other functions. Business-type activities include delinquent tax collections, public transit and an
operation of an inmate commissary.

The County’s financial statements also include legally separate entities (component units) for which
the County is financially accountable. The component units include the Clare County Road
Commission, Clare County Economic Development Corporation, the Clare County Drain Commission,
the Clare County Housing Commission, the Clare County Enterprise Community, and the Clare
County Board of Public Works. Financial information for the component units are reported separately
from the financial information presented for the primary government itself. The Clare County Road
Commission is audited separately and a copy of that report can be obtained by contacting their
administrative offices.

Fund Financial Statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts and is used to maintain control
over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The County of Clare, like
other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the County of Clare can be divided into three
categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Most of the County’s basic services are reported in governmental funds, which
focus on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are
available for spending. These funds are reported using the modified accrual basis of accounting, which
measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The governmental
fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the County’s general governmental operations
and the basic services it provides.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the govemment’s near-term financing
decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this
comparison between government funds and governmental activities.



Clare County, Michigan
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Year Ended September 30, 2006

The County of Clare maintains several individual governmental funds. Information is presented
separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General, Gypsy Moth, Revenue Sharing Reserve,
and Council on Aging funds, each of which is considered to be a major fund. Data for the remaining
governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each
of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in
this report.

Proprietary funds. The County maintains two different types of proprietary funds: enterprise and
internal service. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type
activities in the government-wide financial statements. The County uses enterprise funds to account
for its delinquent tax, public transit and inmate commissary operations. [nternal service funds are used
to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the County’s various functions. Clare County uses
internal service funds to account for the resources used to provide health care to employees and their
families and retirees as well as technology such as voice mail and email. Because these services
predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, they have been included
within governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.

The Proprietary fund financial statements provide the same type of information as the government-
wide financial statements, only with more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide
separate information for each enterprise fund, since two (2} of the three (3) funds are considered major
funds.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties
outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements
because the resources of those funds are not available to support the County’s programs. The
accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.

Notes to the Financial Statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Other Information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report
also presents certain required supplementary information concerning the County of Clare’s budgetary
comparison schedules.

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds are
presented immediately following the required supplementary information.

Government-Wide Financial Analysis
The government-wide financial statements focus on the net assets and changes in net assets of the
governmental and business-type activities. As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful

indicator of a government’s financial position. As the following table demonstrates, the County’s
governmental activities assets exceeded its liabilities by $8,084,563 at September 30, 2006.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Year Ended September 30, 2006

Clare County’s Net Assets

Governmental Business-type
Activities Actlvities Total
2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006
Assets
Current and other assels $ 7923467 5 6,858,506 § 5856,077 5 5,196,906 $13,779,544 $ 12,055,812
Capitzl assets 3622092 4,241,333 1,662,422 1,334,704 5,284,514 5,576,037
Total assets 11,545,559 11,100,239 7.518.499 6,531,600 19,064,058 17,631,849
Liabilitics
Curmrent 1,610,982 1,274,702 81,872 102,246 1,692,584 1,376,548
Nomncurrent 2,210.612 1,740,974 - - 2,210,612 1,740,974
Total liabilitics 3,821,594 3,015,676 81,872 102,246 3,903.466 3.117.922
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets-
net of related detn 1,330,227 2264924 1,662,422 1,334,704 2,992 649 3,599,628
Restricted 2,344 077 1,745,871 - - 2,344,077 1,746,871
Unrestricted 4.049.611 4,072,768 5,774.205 5,094,660 9,823 816 0,167 428
Total net assets $ 1,123,915 $ 8.084.563 $ 7,436,627  § 6429364 515,160,542 $14.513927
Clare County’s Changes in Net Assets
Governmental Busingss-type
Activities Activities Total
2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006
Revenues
Program revenue:
Charges for services 54250570  § 4377,102 S 621,959 S 654,265 5 4,872,529  § 5,031,367
Operating prants & contributions 2,345 859 1,444,658 583,088 668,036 2,928,947 2,112,694
Capital grants and centributions 59,827 12,605 878,652 27,165 9384719 39,770
General revenues:
Property taxes 5902411 6,384,730 210,795 256,847 6,113,206 6,641,577
Other 690,493 479,846 28,920 123055 779413 1,002,901
Tonal revenucs 13,245,160 13,098.941 2383414 1,729,368 13,632,574 14,828,309
Expenscs
General government 4,465,951 4,302,304 - - 4,465,951 4,302,304
Public safcty 5,148,818 5,575,616 - - 5,148,818 5,575,616
Public works 08,317 108,089 - - 68,317 108,089
Health and welfarc 2,213,698 1,937,636 . - 2213,698 1,937,636
Comm. and Econ Development 657,649 57,943 - - 657,649 57,943
Recreation and Culiure 25,821 30,892 - - 25,821 30,892
Other 533573 - - - 533,573 -0-
Interest on long-term debt 133,026 140,089 - - 133,026 140,089
Business-type activities - - 1.434,242 1,498,631 1434242 1,498,631
Total expenses 13.246.853 12,152,569 1,434,242 1,498,631 14,681,095 13,651,200
Change in net assets before transfers 2,307 946,372 049,172 230,737 951,479 1,177,109
Transfers 641,103 1,238,000 {641,103y  (1,238,000) - -
Nect assets, beginning of year 7.080.555 5.900.191 7.128,558 7436627 14,209,113 13,336,818
Net assets, end of year $ 7723965  § 8,084,563 § 7,436,627 S 6429364 $ 15,160,592  $ 14,513,927

- Xifi -



Clare County, Michigan
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The largest portion of the County’s net assets, $9,167,428 (63 percent) represents unrestricted net
assets that may be used to meet the County’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

An additional portion of the County’s net assets, $3,599,628 (25 percent) reflects its investment in
capital assets (i.e., land, buildings, vehicles, equipment and infrastructure}; less any related debt used
to acquire those assets that are still outstanding. The County uses these capital assets to provide
services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the
County’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the
resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets
themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

The remaining balance of $1,746,871 {12 percent) represents resources that are subject to external
restrictions on how they may be used.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the County is able to report positive balances in all three
categories (invested in capital assets-net of related debt, restricted and unrestricted) of net assets, both
for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental and business-type activities.

Revenue By Source - Governmental Activities

Transfers
Other %

6% - Charges for Service
: 31%

o P Operating Grants
Properly Taxes e n NP 10%

44% \ Capital Grants
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Clare County, Michigan
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Year Ended September 30, 2006

The primary government’s net assets increased by $1,177,109 during the current fiscal year. This
increase is attributable to growth in property taxes, and higher investment eamings.

Governmental activities. Governmental activities increased the County’s net assets by $2,184,372.
This increase is attributable to growth in property taxes, interfund transfers and higher investment
earnings.

Expenditures By Source - Governmental Activitles

Hith& Weifars
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Business-type activities. Business type activities decreased the County’s net assets by $1,007,263.
This decrease is primarily due to Delinquent Tax operating transfers (to the General Fund) exceeding
the annual earnings and higher than anticipated transit activity. The Delinquent Tax Revolving fund
transferred a total of $1,238,000 to the General Fund and other funds.

Financial Analysis of the County’s Funds

As noted earlier, the County of Clare uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the County’s governmental funds is to provide information on
near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in
assessing the County’s financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a
useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

At September 30, 2006, the County’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of
$5,964,317, an increase of $1,003,442. This was primarily due to growth in property taxes,
departments controlling expenditures, and grant funding in the nonmajor funds. Of the fund balance
amount, $4,946,332 constitutes unreserved fund balance, which is available for spending at the
government’s discretion.
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The general fund is the chief operating fund of the County. At the end of the current fiscal year,
unreserved fund balance of the general fund was $1,957,223, with a total fund balance of $2,443,810.
Unreserved fund balance represents approximately 17 percent of total general fund expenditures (Total
Expenditures and Other Financing Uses). The fund balance of the County’s general fund increased by
$506,354 duning the current fiscal year. This is primarily attributable to growth in property taxes,
increased interest earnings and departments controlling expenditures.

The county Gypsy Moth fund had a total fund balance of $1,179,903 as a result of continued low
gypsy moth infestation.

Proprietary funds. The County’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Net assets of the enterprise funds at year-end amounted to $6,429,364. The unrestricted portion of
those net assets amounts to $5,094,660. The enterprise funds had a decrease in net assets for the year
of $1,007,263. The decrease was due to transfers out and the higher transit activity not covered by
grant funds.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE COUNTY’S MAJOR AND NONMAJOR FUNDS
As the County completed the fiscal year 2006, its governmental funds reported combined fund

balances of $5,964,317, an increase of $1,003,442 or 20.2%. The net changes are summarized in the
following chart:

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF MAJOR AND NONMAJOR FUNDS

Revenue
Gypsy Sharing Council Nonmajor
General Moth Reserve on Aging  Governmental Total
Fund Balance
9/30/05 $1,937,456 $1,150,724 $ 493955 § 124,050 §$ 1,254,690 $ 4,960,875
Fund Balance
9/30/06 $2,443810 $1,179,903 $1,064971 § 83,013 $1,192,620 $ 5,964,317

Net Change  § 506,354 $ 29,179 $ 571,016 $( 41,037) $( 62,070) $ 1,003,442

Percent 26.1% 2.5% 115.6% (33.1%) (4.9%) 20.2%
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The General Fund balance increased by 3$506,354 or 26.1%. This was due to higher property tax
revenue, increased interest eamings and departments holding expenditures to a minimum. The Gypsy
Moth Fund balance increased $29,179 or 2.5% due to minimal Gypsy Moth suppression activities.
The Revenue Sharing Reserve Fund balance increased by $571,016 or 115.6% as a result of
compliance with state legislation that requires the County to accumulate advanced property taxes in
lieu of future state revenue sharing payments that will be withdrawn on a an annual basis for use by the
General Fund. The Council on Aging Fund balance decreased $41,037 or 33% as a result of increased
demand for senior services. The combined Nonmajor Governmental Funds decreased by $62,070 or
4.9% due to lower than anticipated activity in the Social Welfare Fund and Child Care-Probate Fund.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Differences between the original and final amended budgets for revenue (revenue and other financing
sources) resulted in a 15% increase, ($1,546,465 increase in appropriations). The increase was
primarily attributed to additional property tax revenue as a result of the pass-through of the state
revenue sharing reserve and transfer of the county property tax revenue from a December (Winter) tax
billing cycle to a Summer (July) tax cycle and an increase in Investment Earnings.

Differences between the original and final amended budgets for expenditures (expenditures and other
financing uses) resulted in an 11% increase, ($1,211,642 increase in appropriations). The increase was
due to establishing the pass-through of funds generated from the property tax revenue shift out of the
General Fund to the Revenue Sharing Reserve Fund and various Public Safety activities.

Overall during the year, general fund revenues (revenue and other financing sources) exceeded
budgetary estimates by $299,406 or 2.5%. Expenditures (expenditures and other financing uses) were
less than budgetary estimates overall ($335,222 or 2.7%). This resulted in an actual increase in fund
balance of $506,354 as compared to budgeted (anticipated) use of fund balance of $128,274.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The County’s investment in capital assets for its governmental activities as of
September 30, 2006, amounted to $4,241,333, (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in
capital assets includes land and land improvements, buildings and improvements, machinery and
equipment and vehicular equipment. The total increase in the County’s investment in capital assets for
the current fiscal year was approximately 17 percent. The following summarizes those assets, net of
accumulated depreciation, as of September 30, 2006.

Land and improvements $ 108325
Buildings and improvements 3,445,851
Furniture and other assets 507,927
Vehicles 179,230

Total $ 4241333
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Additional information on the County’s capital assets can be found in Note E of this report.

Long-term debt. Debt is classified as long-term if it matures in a period greater than one year. At the

end of the current fiscal year, the primary government had total debt outstanding of $2,253,418.

OUTSTANDING DEBT AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Oct. 1,2005 Additions Deletions Sept. 30, 2006

Primary Government

Government Activities

Direct County Obligations $ 2,395,000 § - §  (470,000) $ 1,925,000

Lease Payable - 54,115 (2,706) 51,409

Accumulated Comp. Absences 248.239 28.770 - 277,009

Total Primary Government 2,643,239 82,885 (472,706) 2,253,418
Component Units

Road Commission

Direct County Obligations 1,040,000 - (390,000) 650,000

Loans Payable 98,633 - (13,096) 85,537
Accumulated Comp. Absences 174,825 27,152 - 201,977
Housing Commission

Accumulated Comp. Absences 8,887 4,151 (8,637) 4,401
Board of Public Works

Water & Sewer Bonds 1,980,000 - (290,000) 1,690,000
Drainage Districts

Loans Payable 6,369 - (6,369) -0-
Drain Bonds & Notes 167,713 31,336 (37.429) 161,620
Total Component Units 3.476.427 62.639 (745.531) 2,793,535
Total Reporting Entity $ 6119666 $_ 145524 3§ (1.218,237) § _ 5,046,953

The primary government’s total debt decreased by $389,821 (15 percent) during the current fiscal year.

Additional information on the County’s long-term debt can be found in Note F of this report.
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Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

The following factors were considered in preparing the County’s 2007 budget:
s Property tax revenues are projected to increase 6 percent in 2007.
e Inflationary trends in the region compare favorably to national indices.

« The worsening state economy will result in decreased state funding and potential lower revenue
from charges.

» Health insurance costs will moderate (i.e., less than a 10% increase).
Highlights of the 2007 budget are as follows:

e (lare County implemented position reductions eliminating or reducing eight full and part time
positions and totaled $160,000 in personnel cost savings. (Note: Clare County has undertaken
staff reductions in 3 of the last 4 years totaling $620,000 that involved the elimination of 10 full
or part time positions and reducing 20 full or part time positions).

o The County budgeted a contingency of $125,000 as a means of anticipating unexpected
revenue shortfalls and/or over-expenditures.

e The adopted 2007 budget is $103,000 (1%) more than the Amended 2006 budget.

e Due to the addition of a Circuit Court Judge based upon the State of Michigan court caseload
analysis, Clare County added approximately $175,000 in additional operational expenditures to
adequately incorporate the added judge in the County’s budget. (This includes judge’s staff
support as well as additional staff for the County Clerk and Prosecuting Attorey’s Offices.

e The County General Fund decreased its reliance on the excess earnings from Delinquent Tax
Revolving Fund.

e The final jail bond payment of $475,000 due in FY 2008 is being planned to be entirely funded
in FY 2007,

During the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance in the general fund increased to $1,957,223,
representing 17% of the 2006 expenditures. The general rule of thumb is that fund balances can be
used to help government weather bad times, but should not be used as a means of funding routine
operations. The County decreased its dependence on fund balance to $187,480 in 2005 to $0 in 2006.
For the 2007 budget, the County plans to reduce reliance upon fund balance in the general fund.
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Contacting the County’s Management

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the County’s finances to all those
with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided
in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to: County
Administrator, County of Clare Administrator’s Office, 225 West Main Street, P.O. Box 438, Harrison,
Michigan 48625.
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Clare County, Michigan

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

September 30, 2006

Primary Govemment
Govemmmental  Business-type Component
Activities Aclivities Tolal Units
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 4247248 % 1816165 $ 6,063413 § 1,168,152
Investments 1,031,816 1,227,347 2,259,163 -
Receivables - 2,595,198 2,595,198 2,547,686
Inventories - - -0- 268,789
Due from other governmental units 710,906 163,399 874,305 -
Prepaids 122,323 141,410 263,733 -
Current portion of lease receivable - - -0- 333,628
Internal balances 746,613 (746,613) -0- -
Total current assets 6,858,806 5,196,906 12,055,812 4,318,255
Noencurrent assets
Lease receivable - - -0- 1,390,000
Capital assets not being depreciated 108,325 - 108,325 187,883
Capital assets being depreciated, net 4,133,008 1,334,704 5,467,712 28,016,540
Total noncurrent assets 4,241,333 1,334,704 5,576,037 29,594,423
TOTAL ASSETS 11,100,239 6,531,610 17,631,849 33,912,678
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable 345,410 24,911 370,321 198,763
Accrued wages 204,988 - 2004,988 24,253
Other accrued liabilities 49,556 77,335 126,891 36,766
Due to other governmental units 39,423 - 39,423 -
Uneamed revenue 122,881 - 122,881 17,596
Curmrent portion of compensated absences 16,621 - 16,621 3,444
Current portion of long-term debt 495,823 - 495,823 707,109
Total current liabilities 1,274,702 102,246 1,376,948 987,931
Noncurrent liabilities
Advances from other governmental units - - -0- 547 846
Compensated absences 260,388 - 260,388 202,934
Noncurrent portion of long-term debt 1,480,586 - 1,480,586 1,880,048
Total noncurrent liabilities 1,740,974 -0- 1,740,974 2,630,828
TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,015,676 102,246 3,117,922 3,618,759
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 2,264,924 1,334,704 3,599,628 27,307,266
Restricted for
Gypsy moth control 1,179,903 - 1,179,903 -
County roads - - - 1,100,668
Other purposes 566,968 - 566,968 -
Unrestricted 4,072,768 5,094,660 9,167,428 1,885,985
TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 8084563 $ 6420364 § 14513927 $ 30,293,919

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



Clare County, Michigan

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Year Ended September 30, 2006

Net {Expanse) Revenus and
Changes in Net Assets

Pragram Revenues Primary Government
Charges for Oparating Granls Capilal Grants Governmental Business-type Compenent
FunctionsiPrograms Expenses Sarvicas and Conlributions and Coniributions Activilies Aclivitigs Total Unils
Primary govenment
Governmental aclivities
General govemment $ 4302304 5 1661046 3 999,019 § - $ (1,642239) § - $ {1.642239) § -
Public safety 5.675,616 2,459,899 250,114 12,605 {2,852,998} - {2,852,998) -
Public works 108,089 - 539 - {107,550) - (107,550) -
Health and welfare 1,937,636 256,157 192,486 - {1,488,893) - {1.488,993) -
Communily and economic development 57,943 - - - {57,843) - (57.943) -
Recreation and cultural 30,892 - 2,500 - {28,392) - (28,392) -
Inierest on long-lerm datit 140,089 - - - (140,089) - {140,089) -
Total governmenial aclivities 12,152,569 4,377,102 1,444,658 12,605 {6,318,204) -0- {6,318,204) -0-
Business-lypa actlivilias
Dellnquant tax ravalving - 302,529 - - - 302,529 302,529 -
Transit corporation 1,475,980 328,758 668,036 27,165 - {452,001} {452,001} -
Jail commissary 22,671 22,978 - - - 307 307 -
Total business-typa aclivities 1,498,631 654,265 668,036 27,165 -0 (149,165} {149,165} -0-
Tolal primary govarnment $ 13,651,200 5 5,031,367 & 2,112,694 3 39.770 {6,318,204) (149,165) {6.467,369) -0-
Component units
Road Commission $ 5654200 5 792,582 3 3,783,608 $ 1,525,777 . - -0- 447,767
Drainage Disiricls 120,918 - - 19,464 - - 0. {110,454)
Board of Public Works 90,048 - - 50,048 - - -0- -
Economic Davelopment Corparaticn - - - - . - 0- .
Housing Commission 749,944 159,528 65,052 - - - -0- {485,364)
Enterprise Community 206,850 - 206,850 - - - ~0- -
Total componant unils $ 6830960 § 992410 ] 4055510 & 1,635,280 -0- 0~ 0- {148,051)
General revenues
Proparty taxes 6,384,730 256,847 6,641,577 -
Cthar taxes 105,838 - 105,838 -
Investmant eamings 233,997 114,608 348,605 48,960
Gain on disposal of capital assets - - -0- 267,207
Olher 540,011 8,447 548,458 387,503
Transfars 1,238,000 {1.238.000) -0- -
Tolal genaral revanuas and transfers 8,502,576 (858.088) 7,644,478 713,770
Changs in net assets 2,184,372 {1,007,263) 1,177,109 565,719
Reslated net assels, beginning of the year 5,900,191 7,436,627 13,336,818 29,728,200
Net assets, end of the year § 8,084,563 § 6,429,354 $ 14,513,927 $ 30,293,919

See accompanying notes to financial statemants,




Clare County, Michigan
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET

September 30, 2006

Revenue
Gypsy Sharing
General Moth Reserve
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,505704 § 1,180,220 $ 344,791
Investments - - 720,180
Due from other governmental units
Federal/State 112,424 - -
Local 462,099 - -
Due from other funds 746,613 - -
TOTAL ASSETS $ 2,826,840 § 1,180,220 $ 1,064,971
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 163552 $ i5 § -
Accrued wages 180,738 302 -
Due to other governmental units - Federal/State 38,740 - -
Deferred revenue - - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 383,030 317 -0-
FUND BALANCES
Reserved for
Family counseling 31,587 - -
Debt service 455,000 - -
Capital projects - - -
Unreserved
Undesignated, reported in
General fund 1,957,223 - -
Special revenue funds - 1,179,903 1,064,971
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 2,443,810 1,179,903 1,064,971
TOTAL LIABILITIES
AND FUND BALANCES $ 2826840 $ 1,180,220 § 1,064,971

See accompanying notes to financial statements.




Nonmajor Total
Council Governmental Governmental
On Aging Funds Funds
$ 196686 % 876350 $ 4,103,751
- 311,636 1,031,816
- 124,138 236,562
- 12,245 474,344
- - 746,613
$ 196686 $ 1324369 § 6,593,086
$ 113673 % 68,170 § 345,410
- 23,048 204,988
- 683 39,423
- 38,948 38,948
113,673 131,749 628,769
- - 31,587
- 763 455,763
“ 530,635 530,635
- - 1,957,223
83,013 661,222 2,989,109
83,013 1,192,620 5,964,317
$ 19668 $ 1,324,369 § 6,593,086




Clare County, Michigan

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

September 30, 2006

Total fund balance - governmental funds $ 5,964,317
Amounts reported for the governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and therefore are not reperted as assets in the governmental funds.

The cost of capital assets is $ 8,884,401
Accumulated depreciation is {4,643,068)
Capital assets, net 4,241,333

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of
certain activities to individual funds.

Net assets of governmental activities accounted

for in Internal Service Funds 210,537
Net capital assets of Internal Service Funds
included in total capitat assets above (28,650}
181,887
Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and
therefore are not reported in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet.
Long-term liabilities at year-end consist of:
Direct County obligations 1,976,409
Accrued interest payable 49,556
Compensated absences 277,009
(2,302,974)
Net assets of governmental activities $ 8,084,563

See accompanying notes to financial staterents.



Clare County, Michigan

Governmental Funds

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

Year Ended September 30, 2006

REVENUES

Taxes

Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeits
Interest and rents
Cther

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

Current
General government
Public safety
Public works
Health and welfare
Community and ecoenomic development
Recreation and cultural
Other

Debt service

Capital cutlay

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SQOURCES (USES)
Capital lease
Transfers in
Transfers ocut
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

Fund balances, beginning of year

Fund balances, end of year

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Revenue
Gypsy Sharing
General Maoth Reserve
$ 5865000 % 294 § -
81,364 - .
1,457,083 - -
2,603,915 - -
32,077 - -
645,121 48,890 18,579
362,037 - -
11,046,687 49,184 18,579
3,676,574 13,005 -
4,440,573 - -
85,273 - -
576,744 - -
52,590 - -
597,410 “ -
179,833 - .
9,608,997 13,005 -{J-
1,437,690 36,179 18,579
54115 - -
1,228,000 - 1,132,437
{2,213,451) {7,000) {580,000)
(931,336) (7,000) 552,437
506,354 29,179 571,016
1,937,456 1,150,724 493,955
$ 2443810 % 1,179,903 $ 1,064,971




Nonmajor Total
Council Governmental  Governmental
On Aging Funds Funds
$ 408922 $ 302257 & 6,576,563
- 152,753 234 117
- 433,169 1,890,252
- 389,145 2,993,060
- 5,805 37,882
5,026 31,579 749,195
2,000 253,835 617,872
415,948 1,568,543 13,098,941
- 333,801 4,023,380
- 652,672 5,003,245
- 18,071 103,344
456,085 830,394 1,864,123
- - 52,590
- 25,208 25,208
- - 597,410
- 588,610 588,610
- 812,871 992,704
456,985 3,261,627 13,340,614
(41,037) (1,693,084) (241,673)
- - 54,115
- 1,746,014 4,106,451
- (115,000) (2,915,451)
-0- 1,631,014 1,245,115
{41,037} (62,070) 1,003,442
124,050 1,254,690 4,960,875
3 83,013 % 1,192620 § 5964,317




Clare County, Michigan

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Year Ended September 30, 2006

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 1,003,442
Amounts reported for govemmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:
Capital outlays are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. However, in the

statement of activities, the cost of capital assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives
as depreciation expense. In the current pericd, these amounis are;

Capital outlay $ 1,019,682
Depreciation expense (383,559)
Excess of capital cutlay over depreciation expense 636,123

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of
certain activities to individuat funds.

Increase in net assets of intermnal service funds 207,821
Capital outlay of Intemal Service Funds included
in the total above (42,974)
Deprecialion expense of Intermnal Serivce Funds
included in the total above 14,324
179,171
Repayment of long-term debt and borrowing of long-term debt is reported as expenditures and
other financing sources in governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term
liabilities and the borrowings increase long-term liabilities in the statemnent of net assets.
in the current year, these amounts consist of:
Capital lease {54,115)
Long-term debt principal retirement 472,706
418,591
Some items reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial
resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. These
aclivities consist of:
{Increase) in accrued interest payable (24,185)
{Increase) in accrued compensated absences (28,770)
(52,955)
Change in net assets of governmental activities $ 2,184,372

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



Clare County, Michigan

Proprietary Funds

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

September 30, 2008

Governmental
Business-type Aclivilies Aclivities
Nonmajor
Delinquent Enterprise Internal
Tax Transit Fund (Jail Service
Revolving  _Corporation  _Commissary) Total Funds
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1797872 % 13100 % 5193 $ 1,816,165 & 143,497
Investmenis 316,903 910,444 - 1,227,347 -
Receivables
Accounts - 19,600 - 19,600 -
Delinquent taxes 2,575,698 - - 2,575,598 -
Due from other governmental units 150,173 11,6685 1,561 163,399 -
Prepaids - 141,410 - 141,410 122,323
Total current assets 4,840,546 1,096,219 6,754 5,943,519 265,820
Noncurrent assets
Capital assets being depreciated, net - 1.334,704 - 1,334,704 28,650
TOTAL ASSETS 4,840,546 2,430,923 6,754 7,278,223 294 470
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable - 24,478 435 24,911 -
Other accrued liahilities - 77.335 - 77.335 -
Due to other funds 746,613 - - 746,613 -
Deferred revenue - - - -0- 83,933
TOTAL LIABILITIES 746,613 101,811 435 848,859 83,933
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets - 1,334,704 - 1,334,704 -
Unrestricted 4,093,933 904,408 6,319 5,094 660 210,537
TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 4093933 $2329112 § 6319 § 6429364 $§ 210,637

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



Clare County, Michigan

Proprietary Funds

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

Year Ended September 30, 2006

Governmental
Business-type Activilies Activities
Nonmajor
Delinquent Enterprise Intermal
Tax Transit Fund {Jail Service
Revolving _Corporation  _Commissary) Total Funds
QOPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services $ 36470 $ 328,758 $ 22978 $ 388,206 $ 1,293,129
Interest and penalties on delinquent taxes 266,059 - - 266,059 -
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 302,529 328,758 22,978 654,265 1,293,129
OPERATING EXPENSES
Administrative - 138,907 - 138,907 -
Heatth Insurance - - - -0- 1,117,984
Cperations - 838,792 - 838,792 -
Maintenance - 157,212 - 157,212 -
Supplies - - 22,671 22 671 -
Depreciation expense - 341,049 - 341,049 14,324
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES -0- 1,475,960 22,671 1,498,631 1,132,308
OPERATING INCOME {LOSS) 302,529 (1,147,202} 307 (844,366) 160,821
NONOPERATING REVENUES
Intergovernmental - 668,036 - 668,036 -
Property taxes - 256,847 - 256,847 -
Interest revenue 82,959 31,649 - 114,608 -
Other 544 7.903 - 8,447 -
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES 83.503 964,435 -0- 1,047,938 -0-
INCOME {LOSS) BEFORE CAPITAL
CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS 386,032 (182,767) 307 203,572 160,821
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
Intergovermnmental - 27,165 - 27,165 -
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in - - - -0- 47,000
Transfers out {1,238,000) - - {1.238,000) “
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOQURCES {(USES) (1,238,000 -0- -0- {1.238.000) 47,000
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS {851,968) {155,602} 307 (1,007,263) 207,821
MNet assets, beginning of year 4,945,901 2,484.714 6,092 7,436,627 2,716
Net assets, end of year $4,003,033 $2,329,112 % 6,319 $6,429,364 $ 210,537

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CASH FLOWS FROM CPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash receipts from customers
Cash paid to suppliers
Cash paid for employee services and benefils
Other income
Interest on delinquent taxes

NET CASH (USED) BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers out
State/Federal grants
Property taxes

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY
NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfersin
Capital assistance grants
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Sale of capitat assets

NET CASH PROVIDED BY CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIMITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Sale of investments
Purchase of investments
Interest revenue

NET CASH PROVIDED {USED} BY
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash ang cash equivalents, end of year

Reconciliation of operating income (loss} to net
cash {used} by cperating aclivities
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
to net cash {used) by operating
activities
Depreciation
Other income
{Increase) decrease in receivables
{Increase) decrease in dus from
ather governmental units
(Increase) decrease in prepaids
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase in due to other funds
{Decrease) in other accrued liabilities
{Decrease) in deferred revenue
{Decrease) in advance from other funds

NET CASH (USED) BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

See accompanying notes to finandial statements.

Clare County, Michigan

Proprietary Funds

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended September 30, 2006

Governmental
Business-type Aclivities Activities
Nonmajor
Delinguent Enterprise Internal
Tax Transit Fund {Jail Service
Revolving Corporation  Commissary) Total Funds
$ 36470 5 329410 $ 23,050 $ 388930 $ 1,293,537
- {345,024} {23,841} (368.865) (250,000}
- {807,693} - (807,693) (1,088,671}
544 9,630 - 10,174 -
{174,271) - - (174,271 -
{137,257) {813,677} (791) (951,725) {45,134)
{1.238,000) - - (1,238,000) -
- 702,550 - 702,550 -
- 279,856 - 279,856 -
(1.238.000) 982,406 -0- (255,594) -
- - - - 47,000
- 27,165 - 27,165 -
- (27,165) - (27,165) (42,974)
- 13,326 - 13,326 -
-0- 13,326 -0- 13,326 4,026
808,626 - - 808,626 -
- (210,741) - (210,741) -
82,959 31,649 - 114.608 -
891,585 (i79,092) -0- 712.493 -0-
{483,672} 2,963 {791) {481,500) {41,108)
2,281,544 10,137 5.984 2,297,665 184,605
$ 1797872 § 43100 & 5193 $1.816,165 & 143.497
$ 302529 &(1,147,202) $ 307 % (844,366) & 160,821
- 341,049 - 341,049 14,324
544 9,630 - 10,174 -
{578,413) 652 50 (877,711} -
{150,171) - 22 (150,148} 1,558
- {16,341} - (16,341} 28313
- 10,879 (1.170) 9,709 -
288,254 - - 288,254 -
- {12,344) - (12,344) -
- - - -0- (1.150)
- - - -0- (250,000)
$§ (137,257} % (813.677) & (791) & {951.725) & (45.134)
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ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Due from others

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Due to other governmental units
Federal/State
Local
Due to individuals and agencies

TOTAL LIABILITIES

Clare County, Michigan
Fiduciary Funds
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

September 30, 2006

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Agency
Funds

$ 2,085,054
20,501
815

S 2106370

$ 1,621,097
47,761

437,522

S 2106370



Clare County, Michigan

Component Units

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

September 30, 2006

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Inventories
Current portion of lease receivable

Total current assets
Noncurrent assets

Lease receivable
Capital assets, not being depreciated

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation

Total noncurrent assets
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities

Accounts payable
Accrued wages
Accrued interest payable
Deferred revenue
Current portion of compensated absences
Current portion of long-term debt

Total current liabilities
MNoncurrent liabilities
Advances from other governmental units
Noncurrent portion of compensated absences
MNoncurrent portion of long-term debt
Total noncurrent liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

Restricted for County roads
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Board of
Road Drainage Public
Commission Districts Works
$ 443268 § 275,691 $ 440
1,082,941 146,060 -
268,789 - -
- - 333,628
4,794,998 421,751 334,068
- - 4,390,000
187,883 - -
27,222 145 794,395 -
27,410,028 794,395 1,390,000
29,205,026 1,216,146 1,724,068
192,096 1,922 -
22,473 - -
- 3,138 33,628
- 6,342 -
354,012 53,097 300,000
568,581 64,499 333,628
277,784 270,062 -
201,977 - .
381,525 108,523 1,390,000
861,286 378,585 1,390,000
1,429,867 443,084 1,723,628
26,674,491 632,775 -
1,100,668 - -
- 140,287 440
$ 27,775,159 $ 773,062 $ 440
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Economic Total
Development Housing Enterprise Component

Corporation Commission Community Units

5 2125 § 435,374 $ 11,254 § 1,168,152

- 1,318,685 - 2,547,686

- - - 268,789

- - - 333,628

2,125 1,754,059 11,254 4,318,255

- - - 1,390,000

- - - 187,883

- - - 28,016,540

-0- -0- -0- 29,594,423

2,125 1,754,059 11,254 33,912,678

- 4,745 - 198,763

- 1,780 - 24,253

- - - 36,766

- - 11,254 17,596

- 3,444 - 3,444

- - - 707,108

-0- 9,969 11,254 987,931

- - - 547,846

- 957 - 202,934

- - - 1,880,048

-0- 957 -0- 2,630,828

-0- 10,926 11,254 3,618,759

- - - 27,307,266

- - - 1,100,668

2,125 1,743,133 - 1,885,985

$ 2125 3§ 1,743,133 3 -0- $ 30,283,919
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Clare County, Michigan
Component Units
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Year Ended September 30, 2006

Program Revenues Net {(Expense)
Cperating Capital Revenues and
Charges for Grants and Grants and Changes in
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Net Assets
Governmental activities
Road Commission 5,654,200 § 792582 % 3,783608 % 1525777 % 447,767
Drainage Districts 129,918 - - 19,464 (110,454)
Board of Public Works 90,048 - - 90,048 -0-
Economic Development Ceorporation - - - “ -G-
Housing Commission 749,944 199,528 65,052 - (485,364)
Enterprise Community 206,850 - 206,850 - ()=
TOTALS 6,830,960 § 992110 & 4,085,510 & 1,635,289 (148,051)
General revenues
Investment earnings 68,960
Gain on disposal of capital assets 257,307
Other 387,503
Total general revenues 713,770
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 565,719
Restated net assets, beginning of year 29,728,200

Net assets, end of year

See accompanying notes te financial statements.

-15-

$ 30,293,819




Clare County, Michigan
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2006

NOTE A: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOQUNTING POLICIES

Clare County was organized in 1840 and covers an area of 576 square miles divided into 16 townships, 1 village,
and 2 cities. The County seat is located in the City of Harrison. The County operates under an elected county
Board of Commissioners and provides services to its more than 31,000 residents in many areas including law
enforecement, administration of justice, community enrichment and development, and human services.

The financial statements of the County have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to Counly governments. The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and
financial reporting principles. The County's more significant accounting policies are described below.

1. Reporting Entity

As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; GASB Statement 14, The
Financial Reporting Entity {as amended by GASB Statement 39}, and Stafement on Michigan Governmental
Accounting and Auditing No. 5, these financial statements present the financial activities of Clare County (primary
government) and its component units, entities for which the government is considered to be financially accountable.
Blended component units, although legally separate entities are, in substance, part of the government's operations
and so data from these units are combined with data of the primary government. Discretely presented component
units, on the other hand, are reperted in a separate column in the financial statements to emphasize that they are
legally separate from the primary government.

2. Blended Component Units

Building Authority

The Clare County Building Authority is governed by a five {5) member Board appointed by the County Board of
Commissioners. Although it is legally separate from the County, the Building Authority is reported as if it were part
of the primary government because its sole purpose is to finance and construct the County's public buildings.

Public Transit Corporation

The Clare County Transit Corporation was incorporated on September 1, 1981 in the State of Michigan, under the
provisions of Public Act 327 of 1931, as amended, and Public Act 284 of 1972, as amended. The Transit
Corporation is not legally separate, but is administered by a five (5) to twelve (12) member Board elected by a
majority of the seated Board members present and voting. The Transit Corporation Board may not issue debt and
the tax levy is subject to County Board of Commissioners' approval. The Transit Corporation taxes are levied under
the taxing authority of the County, as approved by the County electors, and included as part of the County's total tax
levy as well as reported in the Public Transit Corporation Fund. A copy of the Corporation's audited financial
statements can be obtained at their administrative offices.

3. Discretely Presented Component Units

These component units are reported in a separate column to emphasize that, while legally separate, Clare County
remains financially accountable for these entities or the nature and significance of the relationship between these
entities and the County is such that exclusion of these entities would render the financial statements misleading or
incomplete.

Clare County Economic Development Corporation

The Clare County Economic Develepment Corporation {EDC), which was established pursuant to the provisions of
Public Act 338 of 1974, as amended, is governed by a nine {9) member Board of Directors appointed by the Clare
County Board of Commissioners. The EDC may not issue debt without the County's approval. Financtal
statements for EDC are presented as part of Other Supplementary Information and are not audited separately.
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Clare County, Michigan
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2006

NOTE A: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

Clare County Road Commissicn

The Clare County Road Commission, which is established pursuant to the County Road Law (Michigan Compiled
Law Section 224.1), is governed by an elected three (3) member Board of County Road Commissioners. The
Road Commission may not issue debt or levy a tax without the approval of the County Beard of Commissioners. If
approval is granted, the Road Commission’s taxes are levied under the taxing authority of the County, as approved
by the County electors, and would be included as part of the County’s total tax levy as well as reported in the
County Road Fund. A copy of the Commission's audited financial statements can be obtained at their
administrative offices.

Clare County Drainage Districts

All drainage districts established pursuant 1o the Michigan Drain Code of 1956 are separate legal entities with the
power to contract, to sue and be sued, and to hold, manage, and dispose of real and personal property. The Drain
Commissioner has the responsibility to administer the State Drain Code. The Drain Commissioner is responsible
for planning, developing, and maintaining surface water drainage systems within the County. The Drain
Commissioner may issue debt or levy a tax as authorized by the Drain Code without the approval of the County
Board of Commissioners. The combining financial statements for the Drainage Districts are presented as part of
Other Supplementary Information and are not audited separately.

Clare County Department of Public Works

Pursuant to MCL 123.732, the County of Clare entered into a program of water supply and sanitary sewer facility
construction. The Department of Public Works is under the general control of the County Board of Commissioners
and under the immediate control of a Board of Public Works, which includes the County Drain Commissioner. The
Board of Public Works is considered an agency of the County. The Board manages water supply and sanitary
sewer system construction projects that are bonded by the County of Clare. Bonds issued are authorized by an
ordinance or a resolution approved by the Board of Public Works and adopted by the Clare County Board of
Commissioners. The combining financial statements for the Board of Public Works are presented as part of Other
Supplementary Information and are not audited separately.

Clare County Housing Commission

The Clare County Housing Commission was created on March 17, 1975, in the State of Michigan, under the
provisions of Public Act 18 of the Extra Session of 1933, as amended. The Housing Commission is administered
by a five {§) member Board appointed by the Clare County Board of Commissioners. Its sole purpose is to
rehabilitate and make safe inhabited dwellings existing in the County of Clare. Clare County Board of
Commissioners approves all grants received by the Housing Commission. The combining financial statements for
the Housing Commission are presented as part of Other Supplementary Information and are not audited
separately.

Enterprise Community

The Clare County Enterprise Community is governed by an eighteen (18) member Board. Its sole purpose is to
improve the quality of life of its citizens and promote economic growth. The Enterprise Community is a legally
separate entity with the power to contract, to sue and be sued, and to hold, manage, and dispose of real and
personal property. The financial statements of the Enterprise Community are presented as part of Other
Supplementary Information and are not audited separately.
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Clare County, Michigan
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2006

NOTE A: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

4. Jointly Governed Organizations

Central Michigan District Health Department

Clare, Gladwin, Arenac, lsabella, Osceola and Roscommon Counties participate jointly in the operation of the
Central Michigan District Health Department. All of the financial operations of the District Health Department are
recorded in the records of Isabella County.

Central Michigan District Health Department - concluded

The funding formula approved by the member counties is based pra-rata on each unit's population and equalized
valuation to the District total population and valuation. Member counties' percentages of the net operating budget
for the year of 2006 were:

Clare 16.95% Isabella 28 67%
Gladwin 14.46% Osceola 12.45%
Arenac 10.01% Roscommon  17.46%

Clare County's appropriation to the District Health Department for the year ended September 30, 2006 was
$210,342, which included $13,790 cigarette tax. A copy of the Department's audited financial statements can be
obtained at their administrative offices.

Central Michigan Community Mental Health Services

The Central Michigan Community Mental Health Service Board consists of the Counties of Clare, Gladwin, Isabella,
Mecosta, Midland and Osceola. Financial records for the board are recorded and maintained by Isabella County.
The funding formula is based on the ratio of recorded and maintained by Isabella County. The funding formula is
based on the ratio of population of each County to the total district's population for the net cost of administration and
district programs and 100 percent of the net costs of the individual County programs. For the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2006, the actual County contribution percentages were:

Clare 12.35% Mecosta 14.83%
Gladwin 8.13% Midland 36.13%
Isabella 19.22% QOsceola 9.34%

Clare County's appropriation to Central Michigan Community Mental Health Services for the year ended September
30, 2006 was $139,000. A copy of the Department's audited financial statements can be obtained at their
administrative offices.

5. Related Organizations

Clare-Gladwin Services for the Aging (CGSA)

Pursuant to MCL 400.571, Clare County entered into an agreement with the Housing Commissicn of the City of
Gladwin to provide services to persons age 60 and over. The Housing Commission is a component unit of the City
of Gladwin. Services are provided through commission programs administered by the Clare-Gladwin Services for
the Aging {(CGSA). Clare County levies the millage and provides appropriations to the CGSA.

Budgets are approved by the County and the Clare-Gladwin Services for the Aging. The amount provided to CGSA
by Clare County for the year ended September 30, 2006 was $454,692.
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Clare County, Michigan
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2006

NOTE A: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

5. Related Organizations - concluded

Northern Michigan Substance Abuse Services, Inc. (NMSAS)

Clare County, in conjunction with thirty-one (31) other counties, has entered into an agreement which created the
Northern Michigan Substance Abuse Services, Inc. This organization's Board is composed of one member
appeinted by the Board of Commissioners from each of the participating counties. The County's financial
responsibility is o pass through 50% of the Convention and Liquor Tax revenues received to the NMSAS. For the
year ended September 30, 2006, the County passed through $63,424.

6. Basis of Presentation

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The statement of net assets and the statement of activities (the government-wide statements) present information
for the primary government and its component units as a whole. All nonfiduciary activities of the primary
government are included (i.e., fiduciary fund activities are not included in the government-wide statements). For the
most part, interfund activity has been eliminated in the preparation of these statements. Governmental activities,
which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type
activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities presents the direct functional expenses of the primary government and its cormponent
units and the program revenues that support them. Direct expenses are specifically assaociated with a service,
program, or department and are therefore clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues are
associated with specific functions and include charges to recipients of goods or services and grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of that function. Revenues that
are not required to be presented as program revenues are general revenues. This includes all taxes, interest, and
unrestricted State revenue sharing payments and other general revenues and shows how governmental functions
are either self-financing or supported by general revenues.

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The fund financial statements present the County's individual major funds and aggregated nonmajor funds.
Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even
though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental
funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.
The major funds of the County are:

a. The General Fund is the County's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the general
government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

b. The Gypsy Moth Fund accounts for County millage revenue that is reserved for control of the insect population.

c. The Revenue Sharing Reserve Fund accounts for any shift of State Revenue Sharing dollars from State to local
funding.

d. The Council on Aging Fund accounts for the money used for planning and coordinating services for senior
citizens.

e. The Delinquent Tax Revolving Fund accounts for money advanced by the County to other local taxing units and

various county funds to pay their delinquent real property taxes. Revenues are generated by the collection of
the delinquent real property taxes, penalties, and interest.
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Clare County, Michigan
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2006

NOTE A: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

6. Basis of Presentation - concluded
FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONCLUDED

f. The Transit Corporation Fund accounts for resources used to provide transportation services for the people of
Clare County, particularly the elderly and handicapped, coordinated through a central dispatch center using a
combination of demand-response and reserve trips.

Additionally, the County reports internal service funds to account for the management of aclivity related to
providing health insurance and technology to the County’s various departments on a cost reimbursement basis,

The County also reports agency funds to account for assets held by the County as an agent for the other
governments, private organizations, or individuals. Agency funds are, by nature, custodial, therefore, operational
results are not measured. The County’s agency funds are used for general trust and agency activity and library
activity.

7. Measurement Focus

The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are presented using the economic resources
measurement focus, similar to that used by business enterprises or not-for-prefit organizations. Because another
measurement focus is used in the governmental fund financial statements, reconciliations to the government-wide
slatements are provided that explain the differences in detail.

All governmental funds are presented using the current financial resources measurement focus. With this
measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally are included on the balance shest.
Operating statements of these funds present increases (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and decreases
(i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) in net curent assets.

There is no measurement focus for fiduciary funds since assets equal liabilities.

8. Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures are recognized in the accounts and reported in the
financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the measurement made, regardless of the
measurement focus applied.

All governmental and similar trust funds are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under
this method, revenues are recognized when they become susceptible to accrual (when they become both
“measurable” and “available to finance expenditures of the current period™). The length of time used for “available”
for purposes of revenue recognition in the governmental fund financial statements is 60 days. Revenues that are
considered measurable but not available are recorded as a receivable and deferred revenue. Significant revenues
susceptible to accrual are special assessments and certain intergovernmental revenues. Expenditures are
generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the related fund liability is incurred,
except for interest on long-term debt which is recorded when due.

All proprietary and similar trust funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. Their revenues are
recognized when they are earned, and their expenses are recognized when they are incurred.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, generally are
followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those standards
do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Governments also
have the optien of following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise
funds, subject to this same limitation. The County has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.
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September 30, 2006

NOTE A: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

8. Basis of Accounting - cancluded

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a
proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the Enterprise Funds are
charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the costs of sales
and services, administrative expenses, and other costs of running the activity. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. HWwhen both restricted and
unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the County’s policy to use restricted resources first, then
unrestricted resources as they are needed.

9. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The General and Special Revenue Funds' budgets shown as required and other supplementary information were
prepared on the same modified accrual basis used to reflect actual results, which is a basis consistent with
generally accepted accounting principles.

Budgets are adopted by the County Board of Commissioners for the General and Special Revenue Funds, except
for those that are adopted and administered by separate Boards. The budgetary basis of accounting does not differ
significantly from the modified accrual basis used to reflect actual revenues and expenditures for these funds. The
budget document presents information by fund, function, department and line items. The budget is adopted at the
line item level far the General Fund and Special Revenue Funds and control is exercised at the line item level for all
budgeted funds. The County Board of Commissioners monitors and amends the budgets as necessary. The
County Administrator is authorized to transfer amounts between accounts.

Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with the modified accrual basis used {o reflect actual results in the Fund
financial statements. This basis is consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for all required governmental fund types. The County employs
the following procedures in establishing budgets:

a, Prior to July 1, the County departments, in conjunction with the Administrator’s office, prepare and submit their
proposed operating budgets to the Budget and Finance Committee for the fiscal year commencing the following
Qctaber 1. The operating budgets include proposed expenditures and resources to finance them.

b. A Public Hearing is held to obtain taxpayers’ comments.
¢. Prior to September 30, the budgets are legally enacted through passage of an annual budget resclution.

d. The County does not employ encumbrance accounting as an extension of formula budgetary integration in the
governmental funds. All unexpended appropriations lapse at year-end.

e. Applicable budgeted amounts are reported as originally adopted or as amended by the Board of
Commissioners during the year. Individual amendments were not material in relation to the original
appropriations that were adopted.

f. The County Road Commission follows the requirements of the Uniform Budgefing and Accounting Act,
Michigan Public Act 621 of 1978, in the preparation and execution of its general appropriations act.

10. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The County pools cash resources of various funds in order to facilitate the management of cash. Cash applicable
to a particular fund is readily identifiable. The balances in the pooled cash accounts are available to meet current
operating requirements. Cash in excess of current requirements is invested in various interest bearing securities
and disclosed as part of the County's investments. Cash equivalents consist of certificates of deposit and mutual
funds.
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NOTE A: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

11. Investments

Investments consist of certificates of deposit and U.8. Government Securities with original maturities of greater
than 90 days. Investments are recorded at market value in accerdance with GASB 31, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools.

12. Receivables

Receivables consist of amounts due from governmental units for various financial assistance programs, accounts
receivable related to charges for services, and noles and leases receivable made in connection with Housing
Commission programs.

13. Inventories

Inventories consisting of equipment parts and supplies of $171,771 and road materials of $97,018 are stated at

cost based on the first in - first out method. Inventory items are charged to equipment repairs and operations, and
to road construction and maintenance as used.

14, Prepaids
Prepaids in the proprietary funds consist of insurance premiums which are paid in advance for the next fiscal year.

15. Compensated Absences

County employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts according to their personnel contracts.
In the event of termination, individual employees have vested rights to receive payment for unused vacation and
sick leave.

Accumulated vacation and sick pay amounts that are vested have been recorded in the government-wide financial
statements.

16. Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue consists of amounts related to long-term receivables recorded at the fund level that are not
available to finance current period expenditures and are therefore deferred and also amounts received for various
grant programs that has not yet been earned.

17. Interfund Transactions

During the course of normal operations, the County has numerous transactions between funds, including
expenditures and transfers of resources to provide services, construct assets, and service debt. The
accompanying financial statements generally reflect such transactions as transfers. Transfers between
governmental or proprietary funds are netted as part of the reconciliation to the government-wide financial
statements.

18. Capital Assets
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT AND COMPONENT UNITS {(EXCEPT ROAD COMMISSION)

Capital assets include land, buildings, equipment, vehicles, and drain infrastructure and are recorded {net of
accumulated depreciation, if applicable) in the government-wide financial statements under the governmental
activities and component unit columns. Capital assets are those with an initial individual cost of $5,000 or more and
an estimated useful life of more than one year.
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NOTE A: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

18. Capital Assets - continued

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT AND COMPONENT UNITS {(EXCEPT ROAD COMMISSION) - CONCLUDED

Capital assets are not recorded in the governmental funds. Instead, capital acquisition and construction are
reflected as expenditures in governmental funds, and the refated assets are reporied in the government-wide
financial statements. All purchased capilal assets are valued at cost where historical records are available and at
an estimated historical cost where no historical records exit. Donated capital assets are valued at their estimated
fair market value on the date received.

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset
lives are not capitalized. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the following useful lives:

Land improvements 5-30 years
Buildings and improvements 12 - 40 years
Equipment 3-10 years
Vehicles 3-7years
Drain infrastructure 50 years

ROAD COMMISSION - COMPONENT UNIT

Capital assets, which include property, equipment, and infrastructure assets (i.e., roads, bridges, and similar items}),
are reported in the government-wide financial statements (statement of net assets and statement of changes in net
assets}). Capital assets are defined by the Road Commission as assets with an initial individual cost of mare than
$1,000 and an estimated life in excess of two years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated
historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at
the date donated.

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset
lives are not capitalized.

Capital assets are recorded as capital expenditures at the time of purchase in the fund financial statements and are
subsequently capitalized on the government-wide statements through an adjustment to the governmental activities
column.

The Uniform Accounting Procedures prescribed for Michigan County Road Commissions provide for recording
depreciation in the General Operating Fund as a charge to various expense accounts and a credit to the
depreciation contra expense account. Accordingly, the annual depreciation expense does not affect the available
operating fund balance of the General Operating Fund of the Road Commission.

GASB 34 requires major networks and major subsystems of infrastructure assets acquired, donated, constructed,
or substantialty rehabilitated since fiscal years ending after June 30, 1880 be inventoried and capitalized by the forth
anniversary of the mandated date of adoption of the other provisions of GASB 34. The Clare County Road
Commission has capitalized the current year's infrastructure, as required by GASB 34, and has reported the
infrastructure in the statement of net assets.

Depreciation is recorded over the estimated useful lives (ranging from four to fifty years) of the assets, using the

sum-of-years digits method for road equipment and straightline method for all other capital assets and
infrastructure as follows:
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NOTE A: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONCLUDED

18. Capital Assets - concluded

ROAD COMMISSION - COMPONENT UNIT - CONCLUDED

Buildings and improvements 30 - 50 years
Road Equipment 5-8years
Shop Equipment 10 years
Engineering Equipment 4 - 10 years
Office Equipment 4 -10 years
Infrastructure - Roads 8 - 30 years
Infrastruciure - Bridges 12 - 50 years

19. Long-Term Cbligations

Long-term debt and other long-term obligations are recognized as a liability in the government-wide financial
statements and proprietary fund types when incurred. The portion of those liabilities expected to be paid within the
next year is a current liability with the remaining amounts shown as long-term.

Long-term debt is recognized as a liability of a governmental fund when due or when rescurces have been
accumulated in a Debt Service Fund for payment early in the following year. For other long-term obligations, only
that portion expected to be financed from expendable available financial resources is reported as a fund liability of a
governmental fund.

20. Internat Service Funds

The County uses an internal service fund to account for revenues collected from user departments for the payment
of costs incurred to administer a self-funded health insurance program including actual claims paid for active and
eligible retired employees and their families.

A technolegy fund was established during the fiscal year 2005-2006. This fund is being used to keep the County’s
departmental technelogy such as the voice mail and email systems up to date.

21. Federal Programs
Federal Programs are accounted for in the funds to which the programs pertain. The County has not integrated its

Single Audit Reports and financial data as part of the financial statements. The Single Audit reports and financial
data will be issued under separate cover as supplementary information to the financial statements.

22. Comparative Data

Comparative data has not been presented in the accompanying financial statements since their inclusion would
make the statements unduly complex and difficult to read.

NOTE B: CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS

The County utilizes various pooled cash accounts and investments for approximately 35 funds, The County's
pooled cash and investments consist of a common checking account, savings, certificates of deposit, and mutual
funds.

The County's pooled cash and invesiments are utilized by the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Capital
Project Funds, Enterprise Funds, Internal Service Funds, Trust and Agency Funds, and Component Unit Funds.
Each fund's portion of these pooled accounts is included in the cash and cash equivalents caption in the applicable
balance sheet/statement of net assets.
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NOTE B: CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS - CONTINUED

The other funds of the County utilize separate savings and interest bearing checking accounts. [In addition,
certificates of deposit and mutual funds are separately held by several of the County's funds.

In accordance with Michigan Comipiled Laws, the County is authorized to invest in the following investment vehicles:

a. Bonds, securities, and other obligations of the United States or an agency or instrumentality of the United
States.

b. Certficates of deposit, savings accounts, depesit accounts, or depository receipts of a bank which is a member
of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation {FDIC) or a savings and loan association which is a member of
the Federal Savings and Loan Insurance Corporation {(FSLIC) or a credit union which is insured by the National
Credit Union Administration (NCUA), but only if the bank, savings and loan association, or credit union is eligible
to be a depository of surplus funds belonging to the State under section 5 or 6 of Act No. 105 of the Public Acts
of 1855, as amended, being Section 21.145 and 21.146 of the Michigan Compiled Laws.

c. Commercial paper rated at the time of purchase within the three (3} highest classifications established by not
less than two (2) standard rating services and which matures not more than 270 days after the date of
purchase.

d. The United States government or federal agency obligations repurchase agreements.
e. Bankers acceptances of United States banks.

f. Mutual funds composed of investment vehicles, which are legal for direct investment by local units of
government in Michigan.

Deposits

Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC), FSLIC, and NCUA regulations provide that deposits of
governmental units are to be separately insured for the amount of $100,000 for deposits in an insured bank for
savings deposits, and $100,000 for demand deposits. Furthermore, if specific deposits are regulated by statute or
bond indenture, these specific deposits are fo be separately insured for the amount of $100,000. Michigan
Compiled Laws allow for collateralization of government deposits, if the assets for pledging are acceptable to the
State Treasurer under Section 3 of 1855 PA 105, MCL 21.143, to secure deposits of State surplus funds, securities
issued by the Federal Loan Mortgage Corperation, Federal National Mortgage Association, or Government National
Mertgage Association.

As of September 30, 2006, the carrying ameunts and bank balance for each type of bank account are as follows:
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Carrying Bank
ACCOUNT TYPE Amount Balance
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
Checking $ 4,100,738 $ 4,502,917
Savings 484,047 559,559
Certificates of deposit 1,557,901 1,566,739
Totat primary government 6,142,686 6,629,215
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
Checking 2,071,054 2,079,873
Savings 14,000 14,000
Certificates of deposit 20,501 20,501
Total fiduciary funds 2,105,555 2,114,374
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Septemnber 30, 2006

NOTE B: CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS - CONTINUED

Deposits - concluded

ACCOUNT TYPE

COMPONENT UNITS
Checking
Savings

Total component units

TOTAL REPORTING ENTITY

Due to significantly higher cash flow at certain periods during the year, the amount the County held as cash and
cash equivalents increased significantly. As a result, the amount of uninsured and uncollateralized cash and cash

Carrying
Amount

$ 704,409

377.582

equivalents were substantially higher at these peak periods than at year-end.

Investments

As of September 30, 2006, the County had the following investments:

Carrying Market
INVESTMENT TYPE Amount Value
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
Uncategorized pooled investments
MBIA - Michigan Class $ 45146 $ 45145
Federated U.S. Treas. Cash #632 211,734 212,567
Public Funds Investment Trust 1,184,890 1,234,890
Government Op MM Fund 80,895 80,895
Municipal Investment Fund 651,000 651,000
TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT 2,173,665 2,224,498
COMPONENT UNITS
Uncategorized pooled investments
Municipal Investment Fund 85.436 85,436
TOTAL REPORTING ENTITY $ 2,259,101 $ 2,309,934

Credit Risk

State law limits investments in certain types of investments to a prime or better rating issued by nationally

recognized statistical rating organizations (NRSRO's). As of September 30, 2008, rating information on the

County's investments is presented above,
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—1.081.991

$ 9330232 3 9467908

Deposits of the County are at federally insured banks located in the State of Michigan with all accounts maintained
in the name of the County. As of September 30, 2006, the primary government, component units, and fiduciary
fund accounts were insured by the FDIC, FSLIC or NCUA for $883,767 and the amount of $8,584,231 was
uninsured and uncollateralized.

Bank
Balance

$ 381,409
343,000

724,409

Moody's
Rating

Not Rated
Not Rated
Aaa
Aaa
Not Rated

Not Rated
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NOTE B: CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS - CONCLUDED

Interest rate risk

The County will minimize interest rate risk, which is the risk that the market value of securities in the portfclio will fall
due to changes in market interest rates, by designing its porticlio in 2 manner to aftain a market rate of return
throughout the budgetary and economic cycles while preserving and protecting capital.

Concentration of credit risk

The County will minimize concentration of credit risk, which is the risk of loss atiributed to the magnitude of the
County's investment in a single issuer, by diversifying the investment portfolio to prevent aver concentration of
assets in a specific maturity, individual financial institution, or specific class of securities.

The cash and cash equivalents and investments referred to above have been reported in either the cash and cash
equivalents or investments captions on the combined balance sheet and statement of net assets, based upon
criteria disclosed in Note A. The following summarizes the categorization of these amounts as of September 30,
2006:

Primary Fiduciary Component Reporting
Government Funds Units Entity
Cash and cash equivalents $ 6083413 § 2,085054 3% 1,168,152 $ 9,316,619
Investments 2,259,163 20,501 - 2,279,664

$ 8322576 § 2105566 §1168152  $11,506.283

The cash and c¢ash equivalents captions on the financial statements include $6,225 and $725 in imprest cash,
for the primary government and component units, respectively.

NOTE C: INTERFUND TRANSFERS

Permanent reallocation of resources between funds of the reporting entity is classified as interfund transfers. For
the purpose of the statement of activities, all interfund transfers between individual governmental funds, business
type funds, and component units have been eliminated.

Transfers to General Fund from:

Gypsy Moth Fund 3 7,000
Revenue Sharing Reserve Fund 580,000
Delinquent Tax Revolving Fund _ 641.000
$ 1,228,000
Transfers to Revenue Sharing Reserve Fund from:
General Fund $ 1,132,437
Transfers to nonmajor governmental funds from:
General Fund $ 1,081,014
Delinquent Tax Revolving Fund 550,000
Nonmajor governmental funds 115,000
$ 1,746,014

Transfers to internal service funds from:
Delinquent Tax Revolving Fund $___ 47000
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NOTE D: INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES
The following schedule details interfund receivables and payables at September 30, 2006;

Primary Government

Due to General Fund from:

Delinguent Tax Revolving $ 746613
Component Unit - Drainage Districts
Pue to component unit funds from:

Other component unit funds $§ 583138

Amounts appearing as interfund payables and receivables arise from two types of transactions. One type of
transaction is where a fund will pay for a good or service that at least a portion of the benefit belongs to another
fund. The second type of transaction is where one fund provides a good or service to anather fund. Balances at
the end of the year are for transfers that have not cleared as of the balance sheet date.

NOTE E: CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2006 was as follows:

Primary Government

Restated
Balance Balance
Oct. 1, 2005 Additions Deletions Sept. 30, 2006
Governmental activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 108,325 3 - 3 - $ 108,325
Construction in progress 133,290 451,435 { 584725 ) -0-
Subtotal 241,615 451,435 { 5B84,725) 108,325
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 5,646,893 624,455 - 6,271,348
Vehicles 1,007,174 75,981 ( 18,000) 1,155,155
Furniture and other assets 951,187 452 536 { 54150 1,348,573
Total capital assets,
being depreciated 7,695,254 1,152,972 { 72150) 8,776,076
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvemettts (2,680,553 ) { 144,944 ) - (2,825,497 )
Vehicles ( 897,024 ) { 96,901) 18,000 ( 975925)
Furniture and other assets { 754082 ) { 141.714) 54,150 { 841646 )
Total accumulated depreciation { 4,331,659 ) { 383,559 ) 72,150 {4,643,068 )
Total capital assets
being depreciated, net 3,363,595 769,413 -0- 4,133,008
Governmental activities
capital assets, net $ 3,605210 $ 1,220,848 $(_584725) § 4,241,333
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NOTE E: CAPITAL ASSETS - CONTINUED

Primary Government - concluded

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental activities as follows:

Governmental activities
General government

Public safety

Total Governmental Activities

Transit Corporation - Blended Component Unit

Business-type activities

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements
Vehicles

Shop equipment
Office furniture and equipment

Subtotal

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements
Vehicles

Shop equipment

Office furniture and equipment

Subtotal

Total capital assets
being depreciated, net

Discretely Presented
Component Units

Component Unit - Drainage Districts
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Drains
Lake levels

Subtotal
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Drains
Lake levels

Subtotal

Total capitat assets
being depreciated, net

Balance
Oct. 1, 2005 Additions
$ 735019 $ 24,991
2,410,200 21
75,293 -
99,522 2,153
3,320,034 27,165
( 385,865) { 43,410)
(1,143,437 } ( 285738)
{ 49,870) ( 6,562 )
{ 78440) ( 5,338 )
{1,657.612 ) { 341.049)
$ 1662422 $( 313,884 }
$ 996,582 $ 2,258
168,415 3.074
1,164,997 5,332
( 309278 ) { 16610}
( 46627 ) { 3419)
( 355905 ) {  20,029)
$ 809,082 $( 14,697 )
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$ 115,687
267,872
$ 383,550
Balance
Deletions Sept. 30, 2008
$ - $ 760,010
( 243913) 2,166,308
- 75,293
- 101,675
( 243913) 3,103,286
- ( 429,275)
230,079 (1,199,096 )
- { 56,432)
- { 83779)
230,079 {1.768.582 )
$( 13834 ) § 1334704
$ - $ 998,840
- 171,489
-0- 1,170,329
- ( 325888 )
- { 50046)
-0- { 375934 )
$§ -0 $ 794,395
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Clare County, Michigan

September 30, 2006

NOTE E: CAPITAL ASSETS - CONCLUDED

Discretely Presented
Component Units - concluded

Component Unit - Road Commission
Capitat assets not being depreciated
Land and improvements

Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings
Road Equipment
Shop Equipment
Office Equipment
Engineer's Equipment
Yard and Storage Equipment
Infrastructure - Bridges
Infrastructure - Roads

Taotal

Less accumulated depreciation
Buildings
Road Equipment
Shop Equipment
Office Equipment
Engineer's Equipment
Yard and Storage Equipment
Infrastructure - Bridges
infrastructure - Roads

Total

Net capital assets being depreciated

Total Net Capital Assets

NOTE E: LONG-TERM DEBT

Balance
Oct. 1, 2005 Additions
5 175,220 E 12,663
931,262 99,697
5,677,483 634,143
122,097 3,933
97,796 1,698
34,850 4,327
102,663 -
5,729,084 -
33,301,008 2211920
46,056,243 2,955,718
{ 654,062 ) ( 37.459)
{ 4,514,442 ) ( 440,833)
{ 95,260 ) { 6,046 )
{ 69,597 ) { 8,689 )
{ 22887 ) { 2,049 )
{ 55681 ) { 5,959 )
( 1,620,749 ) { 137,108 )
(12.421.839 ) (1,639,893 )
(19,454,517 ) (2278036 )

26,601.726 677,682

Deletions

( 655,022 )

Balance

Sept. 30, 2006

187,883

1,080,959
5,656,604
126,030
99,404
39,177
102,663
5,729,084
35,512,928

( 655022 )

597,759 .

48,356,939

( 691,521)
( 4,357,516 )
(101,306 )
(  78286)
(24,936 )
( 61,840)
( 1,757.857 )
(14,061,732 )

597,759

(21,134,794 )

(57263 )
$ 26,776,946 $§ 690,345 $(__57,263 )

27,222,145

$ 27,410,028

The following is a summary of changes in long-term debt (including current portions} of the County for the year

ended September 30, 2005:

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

Primary Government
Municipal Purchase Notes
Building Authority Refunding Bonds
GE Capital Lease
Accumulated compensated absences

TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

Amounts
Balance Balance Due Within
Qct. 1, 2005  Additions Deletions Sept. 30, 2006 One Year
$ 1,280,000 - §( 410,000)% 880,000 $ 430,000
1,105,000 - { 60,000) 1,045,000 55,000
- 54,1156 2,706 ) 51,409 10,823
248,239 28770 - 277,009 16,621
$ 2643239 § 82885 $( 472,706)3 2253418 § 512444
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NOTEF: LONG-TERM DEBT - CONTINUED

COMPONENT UNITS

Road Commission
General Obligation Bonds
Instaliment purchase agreement
Accumulated sick and vacation

Housing Commission
Accumnulated compensated absences

Board of Public Works
Sewer system #4
Water supply system #1
Sewage disposal system #3 refunding

Drainage Districts
Promissory note
Note payable - Little Tabacco Drain
Note payable - Bertha Lake Drain
MNote payable - Ross Drain

TOTAL COMPONENT UNITS

TOTAL REPORTING ENTITY

County will attempt to provide this information in the future.

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

Amounts
Balance Balance Due Within
Oct. 1, 2005  Additions Deletions Sept. 30, 2006 _One Year
$ 1,040,000 § - $( 390,000)% 650,000 $ 340,000
98,633 - { 13,096) 85,537 14,012
174,825 27.152 - 201,977 -
1,313,458 27,152 ( 403,096) 937,514 354,012
8,887 4151 8,637 ) 4,401 3,444
465,000 - ( 20,000) 445,000 20,000
425,000 - ( 25000) 400,000 25,000
1,090.000 - _( 245,000) 845,000 255,000
1,980,000 -0- ( 290,000) 1,690,000 300,000
6,369 - ( 6,369 ) -0- -
- 31,336 - 31,336 15,668
125,713 - ( 31,429) 94,284 31,429
42.000 - { 6.000 ) 36,000 6,000
174.082 31,336 _( 43798) 161,620 53,097
3,476,427 62639 _( 745531)_ 2.793.535 710,553

$ 6110666 . 145524 $(1.218.237 )$ 5046963 § 1,222,907

The County was unable to provide gross additions and deletions for accumulated compensated absences. The

General Long-Term Debt Borwls (Pavable from Debt Service Funds)

Bonds payable at September 30, 2008, is as follows:

$2,965,000 1997 Municipal Purchase Notes dated October 1, 1997, due in annual
principal installments ranging from $430,000 to $450,000 through July 1, 2008, with
interest at 5.10 percent, payable semi-annually.

$ 880,000

$1,250,000 1998 Building Authority Refunding Bonds dated April 1, 1998, due in annual
principal installments ranging from $50,000 to $110,000 through February 1, 2019, with
interest ranging from 4.70 to 6.10 percent, payable semi-annually.
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1.045,000

$ 1,926,000
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NOTE F: LONG-TERM DEBT - CONTINUED

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT - CONCLUDED

Capital Lease

The County has entered into a lease purchase agreement which qualifies as a capital lease for accounting
purposes {title transfers to County) and therefore has been recorded at the present value of future minimum lease
payments as of the date of inception. The following are additiona details regarding the lease.

$54,115 Clare County capital lease payable, dated June 29, 2008, due in monthly
installments of $395 through June 29, 2011, with interest of 11 percent. $ 51,409

Compensated Absences

In accordance with County personnel policies and/or contracts negotiated with various employee groups of the
County, individual employees have vested rights upon termination of employment to receive payment for unused
vacation and sick leave under formulas and conditions specified in their respective personnel policies and/or
contracts. The dollar amount of these vested rights, including related payroll taxes, amounted to $277,009 for
vacation and sick at September 30, 2006. Of this amount, $16,621 has been recorded as a current liability and
$260,388 has been recorded as a noncument liability. For governmental activities, compensated absences are
generally liquidated by the General Fund.

The accrued liability for compensated absences of the County Transit Corporation employees is recorded in the
financial statements of the Transit Fund.

COMPONENT UNIT - ROAD COMMISSION

General Obligation Bonds

The general obligation bonds payable is made up of bonds issued on July 24, 1996, June 1, 1988, September 16,
1999, October 4, 2000, and April 1, 2002 under Act 143 for the purpose of defraying the costs of several road
projects. The bends were issued in denominations of $5,000 with rates varying from 4.1 to 7.625 percent. The
bonds mature in $50,000 increments annually over a 10 year period.

The installment notes payable was entered into on July 10, 2002, for the purchase of land. Principa! payments of
$20,000 a year are being made with an interest rate of 7 percent until it is paid off.

COMPONENT UNIT -~ HOUSING COMMISSION

Compensated Absences

In accordance with the Housing Commission persornnel policies andfor contracts negotiated with various employee
groups, individual employees have vested rights upon termination of employment to receive payment for unused
vacation and sick leave under formulas and conditions specified in their respective personnel policies and/or
contracts. The dollar amounts of these vested rights including the related payroll taxes reported by the Housing
Commission at September 30, 2006, amounts to $4,401. Of the total liability, $3,444 has been reported as a
current liability and $957 has been reported as a noncurrent liability.
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NOTE F: LONG-TERM DEBT - CONTINUED

COMPONENT UNIT - BOARD OF PUBLIC WORKS

Water Supply and Sewage Disposal System Bonds

$630,000 Sewage Disposal System #4 Bonds dated November 1, 1996, due in annual
principal installments ranging from $20,000 to $35,000 through May 1, 2022, with
interest ranging from 5.10 to 5.85 percent, payable semi-annually. $ 445000

$575,000 Water Supply System #1 Bonds dated November 1, 1996, due in annual
principal installments ranging from $15,000 to $35,000 through May 1, 2022, with
interest ranging from 5.10 to 5.85 percent, payable semi-annually. 400,000

$1,810,000 Sewage Disposal System #3 Refunding Bonds dated March 28, 2002, due
in annual principal installments ranging from $255,000 to $320,000 through November
1, 2008, with interest ranging from 3.875 to 4.125 percent, payable semi-annually. 845,000

COMPONENT UNIT - DRAINAGE DISTRICTS

Long-Term Pebt Note Payable Agreements

$31,336 Litle Tobacco Intercounty Drain Note dated April 12, 2006, due in annual
installments of $15,668 through May 1, 2008, with interest of 5.27 percent, payable

annually. 3 31,336

$220,000 Bertha Lake Drain Note dated November 9, 2001, due in annual installments

of $31,429 through May 1, 2009, with interest of 4.95 percent, payable annually. 94,284

$60,000 Ross Drain Note dated September 18, 2002, due in annual installments of

$6,000 through July 1, 2012, with interest of 5.10 percent, payable annually. 36,000
$._ 161,620

The annual requirements {o pay the debt principal and interest outstanding for the above Bonds and Notes are as
follows:

Governmental Activities

Direct County Obligations Capital Lease
Year Ending
September 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest
2007 $ 485000 $ 403,350 3 10,823 % 1,120
2008 510,000 78,400 10,823 1,120
2009 65,000 52,115 10,823 1,120
2010 65,000 48,605 10,823 1,120
2011 70,000 44,918 8,117 840
2012-2016 420,000 157,955 - -
2017-2019 310,000 290,280 - -

$ 1,925,000 §__ 514,623 $ 51409 § 5,320
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NOTE F: LONG-TERM DEBT - CONCLUDED

Component Units
Road Commission Board of Public Works Drainage Districts
Bonds Payable Water and Sewer Bonds Diain Notes
Year Ending
Sept. 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2007 $ 354012 $ 36428 $ 300000 $ 74388 § 53097 $ 8,265
2008 194,993 20,242 315,000 61,573 53,097 5,493
2009 106,043 10,492 365,000 47,195 37,426 2,780
2010 60,489 1,511 45,000 38,364 6,000 918
2011 20,000 4,955 50,000 35,858 6,000 612
2012-2016 - - 255,000 138,711 6,000 307
2017-2021 - - 295,000 62,804 - -
2022 - - 65,000 1,801 - -

$ 735537 5 73628 $ 1680000 § 460,794 § 161620 § 18375

Advance refunding - prior

On April 1, 1998, the County defeased a portion of the 1994 General Obligation Building Authority Bonds, which are
due and payable February 1, 1999 through February 1, 2019. This was accomplished by establishing an
irrevocable trust with an escrow agent composed of cash and U.S. Government securities sufficient to meet the
applicable principal and interest obligations. The County issued General Obligation Building Authority Refunding
Bonds in the amount of $1,250,000 to provide resources to fund the escrow amounts and pay the costs of refunding
bonds. Accordingly, the trust account assets and liabilities for the defeased bonds are not included in the County’s
financial statements. At September 30, 2006, bonds due and payable February 1, 2007 threugh February 1, 2019
for the 1994 G.0. Building Authority Bonds in the amount of $705,000 are considered defeased.

On March 28, 2002, the County defeased a portion of the 1988 Sewage Disposal System No. 3 Bonds, which are
due and payable November 1, 2002 through November 1, 2008. This was accomplished by establishing an
irrevocable trust with an escrow agent composed of cash and U.S. Government securities sufficient to meet the
applicable principal and interest obligations. The County issued Sewage Disposal System No. 3 Refunding Bonds
in the amount of $1,810,000 to provide resources to fund the escrow amounts and pay the costs of refunding
bonds. Accordingly, the trust account assets and liabilities for the defeased bonds are not included in the County's
financial statements. At September 30, 2006, bonds due and payable November 1, 2006 through November 1,
2008 for the 1988 Sewage Disposal System No. 3 Bonds in the amount of $305,000 are considered defeased.

NOTE G: EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

The County participates in the Michigan Municipal Employees Retirement System (MERS), an agent multiple
employer public retirement system. MERS is authorized and operated under State law, Act 135 of the Public Acts
of 1945, as amended. The Michigan Municipal Employees Retirement System issues a publicly available financial
report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the system. That report may
be obtained by writing to the System at 1134 Municipal Way, Lansing, Michigan 48917. All full-time County
employees are covered by the retirement system with exception of the Road Commission employees. The Road
Commission employees are covered under a separate retirement plan.

The benefits and conditions outlined below are for general information only. Public Act 427 of 1984, as amended,
covers the benefits and conditions of the Municipal Retirement systems.
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NOTE G: EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM - CONTINUED

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT - CONTINUED
Normal Retirement:

Age 50 with 25 or more years of credited service
Age 55 with 15 or more years of credited service
Age 60 with 10 or more years of credited service
Mandatory Retirement: None

Deferred Retirement:
The termination of membership before age 60, other than by retirement or death, after 10 years of credited
service is considered a deferred retirement. Retirement allowance begins upon application and satisfaction of
normal retirement requirements. The refirement allowance is computed in the same manner as a service
retirement with the applicable benefit program being determined as of the date of termination of membership.
Rights to an allowance are forfeited if the member's accumulated contributions are withdrawn.

Benefit allowances are computed based on the applicable criteria as detailed within the plan. Death and disability
benefits are also provided.

Funding Policy

The obligation to contribute to and maintain the system for these employees was established by the County and by
negotiation with the County's collective bargaining units. The plan requires contribution from the employees and the
amount is determined by each of the County's collective bargaining units.

Annual Pension Cost

For the year ended September 30, 2006 the County’s annual pension cost of $276,266 for the plan was equal to
the County's required contribution. The annual required contribution was determined as part of an actuarial
valuation of the plan as of December 31, 2004, using the entry actual age cost method. Significant actuarial
assumptions include (1) a rate of return on the investment of present and future assets of 8.0%, {2) projected salary
increases of 4.5% per year compounded annually, attributable to inflation, (3) additional projected salary increases
ranging from 0.0% to 8.4% per vear, depending on age, attributable to seniority/merit. The employer contribution
rate has been determined based on the entry age normal funding method. Under the entry age nermal cost funding
method, the total employer contribution is comprised of the normal cost plus the level annual percentage of payroli
payment required to amortize the unfunded actuarial accrued liability over an open period of 30 years in the 2005
valuation. This period will be reduced by one (1} year in each of the next five {5) valuations. Beginning with the
2011 valuation the twenty-five {25) year period will be re-established with each annual valuation. The employer
normal cost is, for each employee, the level percentage of payroll contribution {from entry age to retirement)
required to accumulate sufficient assets at the member's retirement to pay for his or her projected benefit.

Three {3) year trend information

Year Ended December 31,

2003 2004 2003
Actuarial value of assets $ 9,918,912  $10,495,823  $10,995,295
Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) {(entry age) 9,726,118 11,282,428 11,959,186
Unfunded (overfunded} AAL ( 192,794 ) 796,605 1,003,891
Funded ratio 102% 93% 92%
Covered payroll 3,611,478 4,022,625 4,387,069
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 0% 20% 23%
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NOTE G: EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM - CONTINUED

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT - CONCLUDED

Three (3} yvear trend information - concluded

Year Ended September 30,
200 2005 006
Annual pension cost $ 116456 8§ 190429 $§ 276,266
Percentage of APC contributed 100% 100% 100%

Net pension obligation - - -
This trend information was obtained from the most recently issued actuarial reports.

Blended Component Lnit

The Transit Corporation provides the following pension plans for its employees:

Profit Sharing Plan and Trust 401{k)

The Transit Corporation provides benefits to all union employees through a defined contribution plan named the
Clare County Transit Corporation 401(k) Profit Sharing Plan and Trust, effective April i, 1998. In a defined
contribution plan, benefits depend solely on amounts contributed to the plan plus investment earnings. At
September 30, 2006, there were six plan members. Employees may at their option, defer up to 10% of their gross
income. The Transit Corporation will match the employee's contribution at the rate of %4 of the employee's
contribution, up to a maximum of 1% of the employee's total compensation. In accordance with these provisions,
the Transit Corporation contributed $900 during the fiscal year and employees contributed $3,867. Plan provisions
and conlributions requirements are established and may be amended by the Clare County Transit Corporation
Board. The Plan is administered by Plan Administrators, Inc. of DePere, Wisconsin.

SIMPLE Section 408({p)

The Transit Corparation provides pension benefits to all nenunion employees through a defined contribution plan
named Paine Webber Incorporated Savings Incentive Match Plan (the “SIMPLE"), effective February 18, 1999. In
a defined contribution plan, benefits depend solely on amounts contributed to the plan plus investment earnings. At
September 30, 2006, there were five plan members. The Transit Corparation contributes 3% of employees’ gross
earnings and employees may contribute up to $2,000 per calendar year. In accordance with these provisions, the
Transit Corporation confributed $3,961 during the current fiscal year and employees contributed $5,180. Plan
provisions and contribution requirements are established and may be amended by the Clare County Transit
Corporation Board of Directors. The Plan has no administrator.

COMPONENT UNIT - ROAD COMMISSICN

Plan Description

The Clare County Road Commission participates in a defined benefit retirement plan administered by the Municipal
Employees' Retirement System (MERS). The plan covers substantially all full-time employees.

The Municipal Employees Retirement System (MERS) is a multiple-employer statewide public employee retirement
plan created by the State of Michigan to provide retirement, survivor and disability benefits, on a voluntary basis to
the State’s lncal government employees in the most efficient and effective manner possible. As such, MERS is a
nonprofit entity qualified under section 401{a} of the Internal Revenue Code, which has the responsibility of
administering the law in accordance with the expressed intent of the Legislature and bears a fiduciary obligation to
the State of Michigan, the taxpayers and the public employees who are its beneficiaries.
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NOTE G: EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM - CONTINUED

COMPONENT UNIT - ROAD COMMISSION - CONTINUED

Plan Description - concluded

The passage of HB-5625/Act No. 220, with enactment on May 28, 1996, allowed the members of MERS to vote on
and determine if MERS should become an independent public corporation. The vote resulted in approval to
become independent of State control and MERS began to operate as an independent public corporation effective
August 15, 1996, MERS issues a financial report, available to the public, which includes financial statements and
required supplementary information for the system. A copy of the report may be cbtained by writing to MERS at
1134 Municipal Way, Lansing, Michigan 49817.

All full-time Road Commission employees are eligible to participate in the system. Benefits vest after ten vears of
service. Employees who retire at or after age 55 with 30 years credited service are entitled to an annual retirement
benefit, payable maonthly for life, in an amount equal to 2.25 percent of the member's five year final average
compensation. The system also provides death and disability benefits which are established by State Statute.

Participating Road Commission employees are required to contribute 5.0 percent of their annual salary to the
system. The Road Commission is required to contribute the remaining amounts necessary to fund the Michigan
Municipal Employee Retirement System using the actuarial basis specified by statute.

Actuarial Accrued Liability

The actuarial accrued liability was determined as part of an actuarial valuation of the plan as of December 31, 2005.
Significant actuarial assumptions used in determining the investment of present and future assets of 8.0 percent,
(b} projected salary increases of 4.5 percent per year compounded annually, attributable to inflation, and (c)
additional projected salary increases of 0.0 percent to 4.2 percent per year, depending on age, attributable to
seniority/merit and {d) the assumption that benefits will increase 2.5 percent annually after retirement.

All entries are based on the actuarial methods and assumption that were used in the December 31, 2005 actuarial
valuation to determine the annual employer contribution amounts. The entry age normal actuarial method was
used to determine the entries at disclosure.

GASB Statement No. 25 Information {as of 12/31/05)

Actuarial Accrued Liability:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits $ 5,208,000

Terminated employees not yet receiving benefits 165,326

Nonvested terminated employees 173
Current Employees:

Accumulated employee contributions including

allocated investment income 706,295

Employer financed 2,284 557

Total actuarial accrued liability 8,365,351

Net assets available for benefits, at actuarial value

(Market value is $7,489,397) 7,692,080
Unfunded (overfunded) actuarial accrued liability $ 673261
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NOTE G: EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM - CONCLUDED
COMPONENT UNIT - ROAD COMMISSION - CONCLUDED

GASB Statement No. 27 Information {as of 12/31/05)

Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2007

Annual required contributions $ 123,252
Amortization factor used - Underfunded liabilities {30 vears) 0.053632
Amortization factor used - Overfunded liabilities (10 years) 0.119863

Contributions Reguired and Contributions Made

MERS funding policy provides for periodic employer contributions at actuarially determined rates that, expressed as
percentages of annual covered payroll, are designed to accumulate sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. The
normal cost and amortization payment for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005 were determined using the
entry age normal actuarial funding method. Unfunded acluarial accrued liabitities, if any, were amortized as a level
percent of payroll over a period of 30 years. The following table provides a schedule of contribution amounts and
percentages for recent years.

Annual Pension Cost

Annual Percentage MNet
Year Ended Pension of APC Pension
December 31 Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
2003 $ 52,644 100 % $ -0-
2004 110,880 100 -0-
2005 123,252 100 -0-

Agaregate Accrued Liabilities - Comparative Schedule

Actuarial UAAL as
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Unfunded a Percent
Valuation Value of Liability AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Date Assels (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
12/31/03 % 7,519,456 - § 7,536,470 $ i7.014 100 % $ 1,234,382 1%
12131104 7,650,590 8,159,102 508,512 94 1,279,896 40
12131105 7,692,090 8,365,351 673,261 92 1,307,116 52

For actuarial valuation purposes, the actuarial value of assels is determined on the basis of a calculation method
that assumes the fund earns the expected rate of return (8%), and includes an adjustment to reflect market value.

Actuarial assumptions for MERS valuations were revised for the 1993, 1997, 2000, and 2004 valuations. The
funding method was changed to entry age normal for the 1993 valuation.
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NOTE H: POST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS

Primary Government

The County provides certain post-employment health and dental care benefits per contractual agreement. The
health care benefits may be continued after retirement or termination by the individual paying the majerity of the
premiums, in advance, to the County Clerk’s office. The net cost far retirees incurred for the year ended
September 30, 2006, was $238,029. During 2006, there were 24 individuals covered under this agreement.

Component Unit - Road Commission

In addition to the pension benefits described in Note G, the Road Commission provides post-employment health
care benefits to all employees who retire from the Road Commission on or after attaining age 60 with ten {10} or
more years of service; or, those who retire under a valid disability claim who have reached age 60. The health care
benefits consist of the Road Commission paying the monthly health insurance until the recipient reaches the age of
65. The costs of retirees’ health care benefits are recognized as expenditures as claims are paid. For the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2006, those costs totaled $53,089.

Upcoming Reporting Change

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board has released Statement Number 45, Accounting and Reporting By
Empiloyers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The proncuncement provides guidance for local
units of government in recognizing the cost of retiree health care, as well as any “other” postemployment benefits
(other than pensions). The new rules will cause the government-wide financial statements to recognize the cost of
providing retiree health care coverage over the working life of the employes, rather than at the time the health care
premiums are paid. The pronouncement is effective for the year ending September 30, 2008.

NOTE I: RISK MANAGEMENT

Primary Government, except for Transit Corporation

The County is a voluntary member of the Michigan Municipal Risk Management Authority {the Authority), which is
organized under Public Act 138 of 1982, as amended, as a governmental group self-insurance pool. Public Act 138
authorizes local units of government to exercise jointly any power, privilege, or authority which each might exercise
separately.

The administration of the Authority is directed by a nine {9) member Board of Directors composed of municipal
representatives from the membership elected by the membership. The Board establishes the general policy of the
Authority, creates and publishes rules to be followed by the Manager and Board, and is empowered with the
Authority to impose sanctions or terminate membership. The County, by resclution of the County Beard of
Commissicners, has designated a representative to the Authority to be responsible for the execution of all loss
control measures, to ensure the payment of all annual and supplementary or other payment reguirements, to
ensure the filing of all required reports, and to act as a liaison between the County and the Authority.

The Autherity provides risk management, underwriting, reinsurance, and claim services with member contributions
allocated to meet these obligations. The Authority administers a risk management fund providing Clare County with
loss protection for general and auto liability, motor vehicle physical damage, and property damage. Under most
circumstances the County’s maximum loss per occurrence is limited as follows:
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NOTE I: RISK MANAGEMENT - CONTINUED

Primary Government, except for Transit Corporation - concluded

COVERAGE SELF-INSURED RETENTION (SIR})

(Excess of Deductibles)

Liability $75,000

Vehicle physical damage
$1,000 County deductible $30,000 per ocourrence

Property and crime
Beductible per occurrence 10% of the remaining up to $100,000 of loss

The Authority has established a Retained Risk Program to pay losses incurred by members that exceed individual
retention levels and are not covered under existing reinsurance agreements. Losses incurred within the
established limits are general obligations of the Authority. In the event that losses are incurred in excess of the
resources available, the Authority as a whole (i.e., all constituent municipalities) is liable for the excess. The
Authority may authorize dividends to individual members in the event that the members and individual fund balance
is determined to be sufficient to do so.

Liability insurance claims are expensed as incurred. The liability is determined by the Michigan Municipal Risk
Management Authority management based on an actuarial study performed using historical data and available
insurance industry statistics. The liability includes a reserve for reported claims, and reported legal expenses as
well as incurred but not reported claims.

The Authority has reserved fund balance to pay losses incurred by members that exceed individual retention levels
and are not covered under existing reinsurance agreements. Losses incurred within the established limits are
general obligations of the Authority. In the event that Clare County incurs a loss in excess of the resources
available, the Authority as a whole {i.e., all constituent municipalities) is liable for the excess.

In addition, the Authority has accumulated resources to create and fund an internal Stop Loss Fund. The Stop Loss
Fund was initiated to eliminate the need to purchase aggregate reinsurance for aggregate losses paid in excess of
$161,000, net of reinsurance recoveries for any one member in any one year. Aggregate paid losses in excess of
$161,000 net of reinsurance recoveries are paid entirely from the Internal Stop Loss Fund. If at any time the Stop
Loss Fund is insufficient to fund Clare County’s losses, the remaining liability shall become the responsibility of the
Authority as a whole.

At September 30, 2006, the County had reserves for reported claims of $26,793 on deposit with the Authority.

The County also participates in a pool, the Michigan Municipal League Workers' Compensation Fund, with other
municipalities for workers' compensation losses. The pool is organized under Public Act 317 of 1969, as
amended. The County has no liability for addittonal assessments based on the claims filed against the pool nor
do they have any right to dividends.

Clare County is self insured for health insurance through Blue Cross/Blue Shield of Michigan (BCBSM). Under
the terms of the agreement between the County and BCBSM, the County is responsible for the first $50,000 of
health care costs of each employee contract. Claims in excess of $50,000 are covered by Stop Loss coverage
purchased through BCBSM.
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NOTE I: RISK MANAGEMENT - CONCLUDED

Transit Corporation

The Transit Corporation is exposed to various risks of loss related to property loss, torts, errors and omissions,
employee injuries, as well as medical benefits provided to employees. The Transit Corporation purchases
commercial insurance for business auto repairs, commercial generat liability, commercial inland marine {radic and
TV), commercial property (building and contents), computerized business equipment, workers compensation and
medical benefit claims. The Transit Corporation participates in the Michigan Transit Pool for claims relating to auto
and general liability. Settled claims for the commercial insurance have not exceeded the amount of insurance
coverage in any of the past four (4) fiscal years.

The Michigan Transit Insurance Pool (Pool) was created pursuant to the provisions of MCL 124.1 et seq. and was
incorporated under the Michigan Nonprofit Corporation Act, being MCL Sections 450.2101 et seq., as the Michigan
Transit Pool, Inc. The Pool is to provide administrative loss protection programs for the members, to pool losses
and claims, to jointly purchase commercial services, including claims adjusting, data processing, risk management
consulting, loss prevention, legal and related services. The Pool is a separate legal and administrative entity.
Settled claims for the Pool have not exceeded the amounts of insurance coverage in any of the past four (4} years.

Road Commission {Component Unit}

Clare County Road Commission is a member of the Michigan County Road Commission Self-lnsurance Pool
established pursuant to the laws of the State of Michigan which authorized contracts between municipal
corporations {inter-lacal agreements) to form group self-insurance pools, and to prescribe conditions to the
performance of these contracts.

The Pool was established for the purpose of making a self-insurance pooling programs available which includes,
but is not limited to, general liability coverages, auto liability coverages, property insurance coverages, stop loss
insurance protection, claims administration, and risk management and loss contral services pursuant to Michigan
Public Act 138 of 1982.

The Clare County Road Commission pays an annual premium to the Poal for property (buildings and contents)
coverage, automobile and equipment liability, errors and omissions liability and bodily injury, property damage and
personal injury liability. The agreement for the information of the Pool provides that it will be self sustaining through
member premiums determined necessary by the Pool Board.

The Road Commission is also self-insured for workers compensation as a member of the County Road Association
Self-Insurance Fund.

During the year ended September 30, 2006 and the previous two (2) years, there were no setfements which

exceeded the respective insurance coverage. In addition, there has been no reduction in insurance coverage from
the pricr year.

NOTE J: CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The County participates in a number of Federal and State assisted grant programs which are subject to compliance
audits. The Single Audit of the Federal Programs and the periodic program compliance audits of many of the State
programs have not yet been completed or final resolution has not been received. Accordingly, the County's
compliance with applicable grant requirements will be established at some future date. The amount, if any, of
expenditures which may be disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time although the
County expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.
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NOTE K: PREPAID INSURANCE

Clare County Transit Corporation purchases insurance coverage through the Michigan Transit Pool Association
{MPTA). The Transit Corporation's required retention has been increased to $25,000 per occurrence in recent
years. To mitigate risks and provide premium stabilization, the Transit Corporation has deposited an additional
amount of $125,069 with the pool, which is recorded as prepaid insurance as of September 30, 2006.

NOTE L: EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

In the budgetary comparison schedules and other supplementary information section, the County's budgeted
expenditures in the General Fund and Special Revenue Funds have been shown at the functional classification
level. The approved budgets of the County have been adopted at the line item leve! for all budgeted funds.

Buring the year ended Septernber 30, 2006, the County incurred expenditures in the General Fund and thirteen (13)
Special Revenue Funds in excess of the amounts appropriated as follows:

Amounts Amounts
Appropriated Expended Variance
General Fund

Board of commissioners

Salary $ 50,999 $ 51,000 3 1

Professional consultation 7,000 7,689 689
Circuit court

Script reimbursement - 135 135

Trial court attorneys 140,000 163,988 13,088

Jury fees 7,000 10,559 3,559

Witness fees 2,700 3,106 406

Telephone 1,900 2,367 467

Seminars and education 320 475 155

New law books 1,450 1,631 181
Circuit court reporter

FICA expense - 23 23

Medicare expense - 5 5
District court

Full time salaries 289,252 292,403 3,151

Medicare expense 4,589 4,938 47

Health insurance 91,208 95,775 4477

Script reimbursement - 105 105

Vacations - 3,182 3,152

Court appointed attorneys 113,625 130,225 16,600

Witness fees 4,000 8,206 4,206

Volunteers insurance 1,738 1,815 77

Transcripts 6,000 7,036 1,036

Telephone 3,600 4,009 409
Public guardian

Telephone 750 966 216
Probate court

Contracted service 800 1,159 659

Court appointed attorneys 62,000 62,014 14

Telephone 4,800 5,196 396
Circuit court probation

Office supplies 524 1,017 493
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NOTE L: EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS - CONTINUED

Amounts Amounts
Appropriated Expended Variance
General Fund - continued
Probate juvenile
Juvenile probation officer $ 76170 $ 76177 $ 7
FICA expense 7,775 7,932 157
Medicare expense 1,818 1,856 37
Travel and expense 650 1,523 873
County administrator
Full time admin assist 25,686 26,690 1,004
Travel and expense 5,073 5524 451
Election expense
Full time salary 24,572 24,643 71
FICA expense 1,523 1,554 31
Medicare expense 356 363 7
County clerk
Salary 17,352 17,355 3
Payroll bank charges 750 785 35
Prosecutor
Overtime 664 1,061 397
Office supplies 3,076 4,431 1,355
Subpoena 500 4,640 4140
Postage 4,000 4,725 725
Witness fees 1,687 4,485 2,798
Paternity blood tests 1,413 1,648 235
Equipment maintenance 2,000 3,352 1,352
Telephone 3,000 3,674 674
Travel and expense 3,750 3,777 27
New law books 6,500 7,984 1,484
Surveyor
Part time 3,317 3,546 29
FICA expense 218 220 2
Remanumentation
Professional consultation 60,881 60,883 2
Travel 30 38 8
County treasurer
Full time salaries 74,047 74,476 429
Health insurance 25,293 28,008 2,715
Courthouse and grounds
Part time salaries 1,399 1,473 74
Temp-part time 3,262 3,436 174
FICA expense 1,720 1,794 74
Medicare expense 402 419 17
Janitorial supplies 7,000 8,430 1.430
Janitorial service 39,667 40,000 333
Telephone/telephone maintenance 21,974 23,294 1,320
Travel a58 1,055 97
Lights-consumers 35,500 41,970 6,470
Sewer and water 5,900 6,583 683
Building repairs and maintenance 17,243 19,634 2,391
Ground care and maintenance 13,269 13,586 317
Drain commissioner
Heaith insurance 21,043 21,883 840
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Clare County, Michigan

September 30, 2006

NOTE L: EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS - CONTINUED

General Fund - continued
Duplicating department
Supplies
Copier lease
Copier lease interest
Mailing depariment
Maintenance contracts
County audit
Audit additional expense
Sheriff
Full time salaries
Part time salaries
Part time - lig
FICA expense
Medicare expense
Gas, oil and grease
Laundry and dry cleaning
Telephone
Travel and expense
Extradition
Equipment repairs and maintenance
Schooling and training - state
Harrison city contract
Salary
Part time
Health insurance
Holidays
Vehicle repairs
Lincoln Township contract
Salary
Overtime
COBRA/HIPAA
Grant Township
Part time salary
FICA expense
Medicare expense
MMCC security contract
Part time salaries
Hayes Township law enforcement
FICA - Hayes Township contract
Medicare - Hayes Township contract
Marine safety
Salary - law enforcement
CCS&M
Secondary road patrol grant
Salary
Helidays
Vehicle repairs and maintenance
New equipment
Jail and corrections
Full time salaries
Full time bailiff

Amounts
Appropriated

44 -

4,375

3,536
3,510

540,029
71,772
22,062
52,781
12,347
92,000

9,081
21,048
735
8,093
1,500 )
6,515

75,045
7,085
15,883
4,120
8,400

65,861
7,956
30

14,031
802
211

24,558

1,744
408

15,487

36,087
2,602
1,084
5,058

658,553
35,230

Amounts
Expended

6,222
2,706
443

3,868
3,565

553,927
72,565
22,413
54,195
12,675
95,566

9,449
24,875
738
8,195
90
6,562

76,898
7,712
16,605
4,183
8,827

70,226
9,126
31

14,162
925
216

24,571

1,802
421

15,807
1,619

37,627
2,641
1,292
5,833

688,854
35,235

Variance

3 1,847
2,706
445

332
45

13,898
793
351

1,414
328
3,566
368
3,827

102
1,590
47

1,853
627
722

63
427

4,365
1,170

121
23

13

58
13

320
1,619

1,540
39
208
775

30,301



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Clare County, Michigan

September 30, 2006

NOTE L: EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS - CONTINUED

General Fund - continued

Jail and corrections - concluded
Part time salaries
Part time bailiff
Overtime
Part time overlime
FICA expense
Medicare expense
Health insurance
COBRA/HIPAA
Dry cleaning
Janitorial supplies
Dishwashing supplies/chemicals
Medical supplies
Prisoners meals
Health services counties
Health services - renters
OUIL blood draws
Doctor / nurse - in county
Drug screening
Freight
Travel and expense
Supplies and parts
Utilities
Building repair and maintenance
Equipment

Planning commission
Consultant fees

Local emergency planning commission
Equipment

Emergency preparedness
Salary
Office supplies
Gas, oil, and grease
Equipment maintenance

Animal control
Salary
Department manager
Part time
FICA expense
Medicare expense
Section 125 plan
Animal food, efc.
Postage
Gas, oil, and grease
Animal control - dog census
Restricted spay/neuter
Restricted rab/vac. lic depo
Dues and subscriptions
Adoption fee refund
Telephone
Vehicle repairs and maintenance

Amounis

Appropriated

-45-

163,501
77,469
43,323
16,613
63,762
14,910

201,162

255
16,316
29,150

4,850
10,000

250,356
88,500
51,600

2,400
15,000
2,950
625
3,400
5,850

167,275
17,907

2,715

15,000
850

20,138
600
1,500
1,500

28,779
35,321
41,132
6,590
1,541
75
5,545
200
4,500
100
9,336
675
510

2,340
3,595

Amounts

Expended

$

167,198
79,284
44,715
16,795
65,178
15,243

204,236

300
16,681
29,932

5,231
10,372

267,461
92,452
57,190

2,507
15,817
3,259
703
3,938
6,029

174,381
18,901

2,753

16,020
979

20,802
767
3,797
1,587

29,925
37,037
45,721
6,856
1,604

5,648
205
7,445
197
11,933
1,100
660
185
2,73
4,898

Variance

3,697
1,815
1,392
182
1,426
333
3,074
45
365
782
381
372
17,105
3,952
5,580
107
817
309
78
538
179
7,106
994
38

1,020
129

664
167
2,297
87

1,146
1,716
4,589
266
63

75
103

5
2,945
97
2,597
425
150
165
391
1,303



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Clare County, Michigan

September 30, 2006

NOTE L: EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS - CONTINUED

General Fund - concluded
Animal control - concluded
Utilities
Equipment repairs and maintenance
Shelter repair - maintenance
Solid waste
Salary
Overtime
Supplies and postage
Electronics
Contagious diseases
Health services
Medical examiner
Service and investigations
Mileageftravel
Veterans' affairs
Director salary
Assistant salary
FICA expense
Medicare expense
Insurance & bonds
Life insurance
County outside counsel
Attorney fees
Mew equipment - computers
Appropriations transfers out
Jail building debt appropriation

Parks and Recreation Fund
Office supplies
Postage
Gas, oil and grease

Friend of the Court Fund
Salary
Secretary salary
COBRA/HIPAA
Section 125 plan
Vacations
Office supplies
Postage
Conventions and seminar expenses

Building Department Fund
Building inspector
Building inspector salary
Secretary salary
Script reimbursement
Electrical inspector
Electrical inspector salary
Secretary salary
QOvertime

Amounts
Appropriated
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19,800
4,700
3,520

13,882

6,500
865

1,000

13,000
5,200

29,935
25,322
3,426
801

29)

20,000
2,500

475,790

235
1,284
505

45,835
151,320

3,000
3,500
600

31,362
12,661
840

31,362
12,661
1,500

Amounts
Expended

22,690
5,320
3,606

14,670
59
7,102
900

1,163

14,445
5,214

30,278
25,621
3,434
803

24,480
59,715

476,090

241
1,386
781

47,210
152,254
74

198
1,167
3,047
4,106
662

31,732
12,810
975

31,732
12,810
1,924

Variance

$ 2,890
620
a6

788
59
602
35

163

1,445
14

343
299
8
2

29

4,480
57,215

300

91
276

1,375
934
74
198
1,167

606
62

370
149
135

370
149
424



Clare County, Michigan
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2006

NOTE L: EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS - CONTINUED

Amounts Amounts
Appropriated Expended Variance

Register of Deeds Automation Fund

Contractual services $ 50,000 3 52,000 $ 2,000
911 Service Fund

Part time 103,851 104,348 497

Health insurance 45,659 47,869 2,210

Maintenance contracts - 911 11,029 11,160 13

Utilities 122 163 41

Office equip. maintenance - lien mach. 8,635 10,550 1,915

Schooling and training - count 3,618 3,727 109
Local Corrections Cfficer Training Fund

Expenditure control - 10 10
Drug Law Enforcement Fund

New equipment 2,993 4,755 1,762
Law Library Fund

Expenditure control 3,500 3,876 376
Clare County Council on Aging Fund

Expenditure control - 2,000 2,000

Contract services/senior 428,281 454,692 26,411
Child Care Probate Fund

Probate

CQO juvenile detention 99,974 195,196 95,222

Cther - private 20,444 45,737 25,293
Child Care DHS Fund

Expenditure control 117,000 164,527 47,527
Soldier and Sailor Relief Fund

Travel & expense 450 452 2
Airport Fund

Natural gas and electricity 1,000 1,014 14

COMPONENT UNIT - ROAD COMMISSION

Public Act 621 of 1978, section 18 (I}, as amended, provides that a County Road Commission shall not incur
expenditures in excess of amounts appropriated. As presented in the financial staterments for the twelve months
ended September 30, 2006 the County Road Cammission incurred expenditures in certain areas which were in
excess of the amounts appropriated as follows:

Amounts Amounts
Appropriated Expended Variance
Local Road
Heavy maintenance $ 550,000 $ 1,347,552 $( 797,552 )
Maintenance 1,710,000 1,943,307 { 233,307 )

State Trunkline
Monmaintenance - 46,336 { 46,336 )
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Clare County, Michigan
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2008

NOTE 1: EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS - CONCLUDED

COMPONENT UNIT - ROAD COMMISSION - CONCLUDED

Amounts Amounts
Appropriated Expended Variance
Equipment expense - net $ 50,000) $ 125,861 $( 175,861 )
Long-Term Debt 400,000 403,096 { 3,096 )

The Road Commission does not use encumbrances for budgetary purposes. During the twelve months ended
September 30, 2006, the Road Commissioners made one amendment to the General Operating Fund Budget.

NOTE M: FUND BAL ANCE RESERVES AND DESIGNATIONS

Reserved fund balance is used to earmark a portion of fund balance to indicate that it is not appropriate for
expenditure or has been legally segregated for a specific future use. Designated fund balance indicates that portion
of fund balance or net assets which the County has set aside for specific purposes. These reserves and
designations are recorded at the fund level to indicate management plans for these funds.

The following are the various fund balance reserves as of September 30, 2006:

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
General Fund
Reserved for family counseling $ 31,587
Reserved for debt service 455,000
$ 486,587
Nonmajor governmental funds
Reserved for debt service 3 763
Reserved for capital projects 530,635
$_531,308
COMPONENT UNITS
Board of Public Works
Reserved for debt service & 440
Drainage Districts
Designated for capital projects 3 30416

NOTE N: PROPERTY TAXES AND TAXES RECFEIVABLFE

The County property tax is levied each December 1 and July 1 on the taxable valuation of property located in the
County as of the preceding December 31.

Beginning with the 2004 tax levy, the state has mandated the creation of a Revenue Sharing Reserve Fund into
which one-third of the County's 2004 to 2006 ad valorem operating tax is being recognized. The purpose of the
fund is to accumulate reserves of the County’s own local funds from which an amount similar to Revenue Sharing
payments, formerly made by the State, will be made back to the General Fund. As a part of this process, the
County’s tax levy is shifting over the next three years from winter to summer.
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Clare County, Michigan
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2006

NOTE N: PROPERTY TAXES AND TAXES RECEIVABLE - CONCLUDED

The County's Winter 2005 and Summer 2006 ad valorem taxes were levied and collectible on December 1, 2005
and July 1, 2006, respectively. It is the County's policy to recognize revenues from the tax levy in the year when the
proceeds of the levy are budgeted and made available for the financing of County operations. As a result, the
County's Winter 2005 and Summer 2006 tax levies have been recognized as revenue in the current fiscal year.
The 2005 taxable value of Clare County amounted to $866,696,112 on which ad valorem taxes levied for County
general operating purposes consisted of 3.1580 mills. For the year ended September 30, 2008, the County levied
0.4758 mills for the Council on Aging, 0.3469 miils for the Jail Building Debt. The Clare County Transit Corparation
levied 0.2974 mills for transportation services.

By resolution of the Board of Commissioners and agreement with various taxing authorities, the County purchased
at face value the real property taxes receivable returned delinquent on March 1, 2006. Subsequent collections of
delinquent taxes receivable, plus interest thereon and investment earnings, are used to repay the funds distributed
by the Delinquent Tax Revolving Fund. This activity is accounted for in the Delinguent Tax Revolving (Enterprise)
Fund.

NOTE O: FEDERAIL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

COMPONENT UNIT - ROAD COMMISSION

It is required by the Michigan Department of Transportation that Road Commissioners report total federal financial
assistance for Highway Research, Planning and construction pertaining to their County. However, enly the federal
financial assistance applicable to negotiated account expenditures is required to be audited for compliance under
the Single Audit Act through Road Commission procurement. The reason for this requirement is that the Road
Commission is required to have accounting and administrative control over the force account portion while the
balance is administered by the Michigan Department of Transportation.

The federal aid secondary revenue of $32,770 represents the Department of Transportation Federal Highway grant

money expended on public road improvement projects where work was performed by independent contractors paid
for and administered by the Michigan Department of Transportation.

NOTE P: RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Restrictions of net assets shown in the government-wide financial statements indicate that restrictions imposed by
the funding source or some other outside source which precludes their use for unrestricted purposes. The
following are the various net asset restrictions as of September 30, 20086:;

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
Governmental Activities
Restricted for

Gypsy moth control $ 1,179,903

Other purposes
Drug law enforcement 9,541
Local corrections officers 12,589
Public building and improvements 58,684
911 service 46,486
Law library 1,133
Council on Aging 83,013
Animal shelter __ 355522
566968
$ 1746871
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Clare County, Michigan
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 20086

NOTE P: RESTRICTED NET ASSETS - CONCLUDED

COMPONENT UNITS
Restricted for

County roads $ 1,100,668

NOTE Q: FUND BALANCE DEFICITS

The following funds had a fund balance deficit at September 30, 2006:

Deficit
Component units
Drainage Districts
Lake level $ 8,005
Lake improvement revolving 25,046

NOTE R: RESTATED NET ASSETS

Beginning net assels were restated to reclassify the Housing Commission as a discretely presented component unit
and to correct overstated capital assets as of September 30, 2006 as follows:

Governmental Activities

Net assets as of September 30, 2005 $ 7,723,965

Housing Commission (1,806,892 )

Capital assets { 16882)
Restated net assets as of September 30, 2005 $ 590019

Discretely Presented Component Units

Net assets as of September 30, 2005 $27,921,308
Housing Commission 1,806,892
Restated net assets as of September 30, 2005 $29,728,200
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General Fund

Clare County, Michigan

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - REVENUES AND
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

Year Ended September 30, 2006

REVENUES
Taxes

Current and delinquent property taxes
Payments in lieu of taxes
Mobite home park taxes
Tax reverted lands
Other taxes
Administrative fees

Total taxes

Licenses and pemits
Dog licenses
Marriage license fees
Gun permits
Other permits

Total licenses and permits

Intergovernmental - Federal/State
Soil erosion and sedimentation
Bullet proof vest
Homeland security
MMCC security
Single business tax
Michigan justice training
Remonumentation grant
Snowmobile grant
Byime grant
Secondary road patrol
Food stamp fraud grant
Prosecutor - CRP
Caseflow assistance grant
Victims’ Rights
Juvenile Incentive Block grant
Probate court judge salary
Judges salary standardization
Court eguity
Liquor law enforcement
Michigan Works grant
Off-road vehicle
Convention facility tax
Juvenile officer grant
Solid waste management grant
Cigarette tax
Marine safety grant
Other

Total intergovernmental - Federal/State

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual {Negative)
$ 4121340 § 5264277 % 5674400 % 410,132
5,200 5,200 13,989 8,789
1,200 1,200 2,488 1,288
500 500 - (500)
56,917 56,917 51,903 {5,014)
115,000 115,000 122,301 7,301
4,300,157 5,443,094 5,865,090 421,996
75,000 75,000 67,818 {7,182)
4,000 4,000 4,280 280
7,835 7.835 4,897 {2,938)
4,100 4,100 4,369 269
90,935 90,935 81,364 {9,571)
25,000 25,000 18,350 (6,650)
3,000 3,000 1,975 (1,025)
31,063 89,775 47,709 (42,066)
25,000 28,825 27,763 (1,062)
36,307 36,307 36,307 -0-
5,000 6,515 10,824 4,309
33,693 24,654 24,384 {270)
10,388 10,388 4,877 (5,711}
28,000 16,250 12,795 {3,455)
57,500 73,278 70,623 (2,655)
- - 2,363 2,363
37,500 37,500 51,141 13,641
6,000 6,000 8,259 2,259
7,000 49,287 49 287 -0-
53,991 53,091 11,540 (42,451)
93,207 93,207 101,458 8,251
75,444 75,444 75,445 1
210,000 210,000 215,268 5,268
10,880 10,880 4,297 (6,583)
61,155 - - -0-
12,860 12,860 9,860 {3,000)
109,983 120,095 126,848 6,753
27,317 27,317 27317 -0-
64,000 64,000 51,086 {12,914)
20,000 20,000 18,457 {1,543)
10,932 10,932 19,881 8,949
450 450 574 124
1,055,670 1,105,955 1,028,488 (77,467)
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Clare County, Michigan
General Fund

BUDGETARY COMPARISCN SCHEDULE - REVENUES AND
OTHER FINANCING SCURCES - CONTINUED

Year Ended September 30, 2006

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Qriginal Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES - CONTINUED
Intergovernmental - local
School safety $ 78316 § 78316 § 72290 & (6,026)
Law enforcement 345,630 361,168 344,215 (16,953)
Enterprise Community - 5,000 12,090 7,090
Total intergovemmental - local 423,946 444 484 428,595 (15,889)
Charges for services
Circuit Court costs 47,050 47,050 51,562 4512
District Court costs 326,600 355,600 413,621 58,021
Probate/family court 27,000 27,000 34,190 7,190
Care of prisoners 1,463,500 1,463,500 1,291,765 {171,735)
Treasurer 3,000 3,000 3,855 955
Real estate transfer tax 105,000 105,000 92,135 {12,865)
Clerk 48,000 48,000 46,542 {1.458)
Register of deeds 228,860 236,360 243,254 6,894
Court attomey fees 86,500 111,800 113,642 2,142
Sheriff department 32,500 32,500 38,474 5,974
Jail 11,100 11,100 21,825 10,725
Inmate work release 13,500 13,500 7,608 (5,892}
Preliminary breath test fees 15,000 15,000 16,700 1,700
Publi¢ guardian services 25,000 25,000 24,080 {940)
Telephone commissions 60,000 60,000 58,256 (1,744)
Drug screening and tether 8,500 8,500 9,100 600
Equalization 56,006 61,206 92,945 31,739
Central services 26,702 26,702 26,702 -0-
Animal control 16,110 16,110 15,486 {624)
Miscellaneous services 4,795 4,995 2,093 {2,902)
Total charges for services 2,604,723 2,671,623 2,803,915 {67,708)
Fines and forfeits
District Court 10,000 10,000 7,580 (2.410)
Ordinance fines 10,000 17,000 18,522 1,522
Circuit Court 1,850 1,850 5,965 4,115
Total fines and forfeits 21,850 28,850 32,077 3.227
Interest and rents
Investment eamings 20,000 65,000 138,020 73,020
Royalties 455,000 455,000 427 619 (27.381)
Rental fees 65,000 82,823 79,482 (3,341)
Total interest and rents 540,000 602,823 645,121 42,298
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Clare County, Michigan
General Fund

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - REVENUES AND
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES - CONCLUDED

Year Ended September 30, 2006

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Positive
QOriginal Final Actual {Negative)
REVENUES - CONCLUDED
Other
Reimbursements - workers' compensation $ 10,000 % 10000 & 10,822 § 922
Reimbursements - inmate medical 41,300 69,800 60,060 {9,740)
Reimbursements - insurance 10,000 10,000 4,736 {5,264)
Reimbursements - elections 20,000 20,000 14,986 {5.014)
Reimbursements - jury fees 5,000 5,000 9,265 4,265
Reimbursements - courts 67,625 67,625 43,505 (18,120)
Reimbursements - Prosecutor - - 786 786
Reimbursements - Treasurer 1,500 1,500 106 (1,394)
Reimbursements - Sheriff 6,000 6,000 1,850 (4,150)
Reimbursements - restitution 100 100 856 756
Reimbursements - jail 3,000 3,000 494 (2,506)
Reimbursements - tax collect bond 2,100 2,100 3,130 1,030
Reimbursements - postage 11,600 11,600 19,710 8,110
Reimbursements - Register of Deeds - - 322 322
Reimbursements - other 400 1,075 12,977 11,902
Landfill amendment fee - 150,000 150,000 0-
Sale of capital assets - - 344 344
Donations - general 6,975 23,782 20,283 {3,499)
Miscellaneous revenue 50 50 1,705 1,655
Total other 185,650 381,632 362,037 {19,595)
TOTAL REVENUES 9,222,931 10,769,396 11,046,687 277,291
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Capital lease - - 54,115 54,115
Transfers in
Delinquent tax revolving 641,000 641,000 641,000 -0-
Revenue sharing reserve 612,000 612,000 580,000 {32,000)
Gypsy moth 7,000 7.000 7,000 (0-
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES 1,260,000 1,260,000 1,282,115 22,115
TOTAL REVENUES AND
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES $10,482931 $12,029,396 $12,328,802 $ 299,406
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Clare County, Michigan

General Fund

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - EXPENDITURES AND
QOTHER FINANCING USES BY ACTIVITY

Year Ended September 30, 2006
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Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Positive
QOriginal Final Actual (Negative)
EXPENDITURES
General government
Board of Commissioners 127,918 135,418 116318 3 19,100
County administrator 144,034 143,667 136,613 7,054
Elections 101,007 101,007 55,502 45,505
Clerk 281,149 287,895 276,496 11,399
Equalization 207,736 207,736 180,474 27,262
Prosecutor 337,931 345,330 327147 18,183
Register of Deeds 269,529 271,100 230,520 40,580
Abstract department 40,247 40,247 38,083 2,164
Record capying and mailing 76,856 81,170 83,921 (2,751)
Professional services 60,115 66,365 66,135 230
Survey and remonumentation 73,936 65,163 65,090 73
Treasurer 178,427 179,643 176,483 3,160
Cooperative extension service 94,965 106,874 74,087 32,787
Data processing 54,860 54,860 45,808 8,052
Building authority 354 354 - 354
Courthouse and grounds 244 617 230,249 228,648 1,601
Drain commissioner 93,025 93,025 85,205 7,820
Sail conservation 27,800 27,800 24,885 2,915
Circuit Court 260,293 267,837 266,696 1,141
Circuit Court probation 4,250 3,774 3,915 (141)
Public guardian 31,944 31,944 31,653 291
District Court 588,214 626,339 650,910 (24,571)
Michigan Works employment grant 61,155 - - -0-
Probate Caourt 358,979 358,979 349,860 9,119
Probate Court juvenile 165,481 166,787 161,655 5132
Family counseling 1,500 1,500 - 1.500
Jury board 725 725 470 255
Total general government 3,887,047 3,895,788 3,676,574 219,214
Public safety
Sheriff 1,338,684 1,395,190 1,405,343 {10,153)
School safety 79,862 79,862 71,913 7,949
Marine safety 20,495 20,495 18,635 1,860
Jail 2,009,537 2,057,765 2,125,089 (67,324)
City and township contracts 357,218 372,781 337,406 35,375
Emergency preparedness 55,856 117,918 91,140 26,778
Bayanet grant 61,952 61,952 48,301 13,651
Off road grant 13,242 13,242 9,860 3,382
MMCC Security 25,000 28,825 27,668 1,157
Snowmobile grant 11,222 11,222 7,476 3,746
Secondary road patrol 67,781 85,929 70,007 15,922
Arimal control 192,617 214,395 227,735 {i13,340)
Total public safety 4,233,466 4,459,576 4,440,573 19,003
Public works
Board of public works 408 408 140 268
Solid waste 138,965 111,155 80,630 30,525
Drain at large 4,703 4,703 4,503 200
Total public works 144,076 116,266 85,273 30,993



Clare County, Michigan
General Fund

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - EXPENDITURES AND
OTHER FINANCING USES BY ACTIVITY - CONCLUDED

Year Ended September 30, 2006

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Qriginal Final Actual {Negalive)
EXPENDITURES - CONCLUDED
Health and welfare
Central Michigan District
Health Depariment $ 207194 % 210,342 % 210,242 % -0-
Contagious disease 1,165 1,165 1,163 2
Community Mental Health 139,000 139,000 139,000 -0-
Medical examiner 52,325 64,325 64,770 (445)
Veteran's affairs 91,635 96,752 89,885 6,867
Juvenile incentive 16,491 16,491 11,536 4,955
Substance Abuse Council 57,749 60.048 60,048 -0~
Total health and welfare 565,559 588,123 576,744 11,379
Community economic and development
Middle Michigan Development 20,000 22,500 22,500 -0-
Convention and visitors bureau 5,000 5,000 5,000 -0-
Planning commission 20,800 26,000 25,090 910
Total cormmunity economic
and development 45,800 53,500 52,590 910
Other
Contingency 224,369 12,764 - 12,764
Insurance and bonds 609,325 637,916 597,410 40,506
Total other 833,694 650,680 597,410 53,270
Capital cutlay 159,000 168,234 179,833 {11,589)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 9,860,642 9,932,167 9,608,997 323,170
OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers out
Parks and recreation 7,060 7,080 7.060 -0-
Revenue sharing reserve - 1,132,437 1,132,437 -0-
Social welfare 10,000 10,000 10,000 -0-
Soldiers and sailors relief 18,150 12,352 - 12,352
Friend of the court 12,166 12,166 12,166 -0-
Child care probate 375,000 375,000 375,000 -0-
Jail building debt 475,790 475,790 476,090 {300)
Building authority refunding bond 112,220 112,220 112,220 -0-
Child care DHS 75,000 75,000 75,000 -0-
911 service - 13,478 13,478 -0-
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING USES 1,085,386 2,225,503 2,213,451 12,052
TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND
OTHER FINANCING USES $ 10,946,028 § 12157670 § 11822448 § 335,222
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Clare County, Michigan
Gypsy Moth Fund
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

Year Ended September 30, 2006

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual {Negative)
REVENUES
Taxes % - 5 - % 294 % 294
Interest 15,000 15,000 48,890 33,890
TOTAL REVENUES 15,000 15,000 49,184 34,184
EXPENDITURES
Current
General government 110,660 110,660 13.005 97,655
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
{(UNDER) EXPENDITURES (95,660) (95,660) 36,179 131,839
OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers out {7,000) {7,000) {7,000} -0-
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (102,660) {102,660) 29,179 131,839
Fund balance, beginning of year 1,150,724 1,150,724 1,150,724 -0-
Fund balance, end of year $1,048064 $1,048,064 $1,179,903 § 131,839
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Clare County, Michigan

Revenue Sharing Reserve Fund

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

Year Ended September 30, 2006

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual {Negative)
REVENUES
Interest 3 - § 20000 % 18579 $ (1,421)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 612,000 1,132,437 1,132,437 -D-
Transfers out {612,000) {612,000) {580,000} 32,000
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) -0- 520,437 552,437 32,000
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -0- 540,437 571,016 30,579
Fund balance, beginning of year 493 955 493,955 493,855 -0-
Fund balance, end of year $ 493955 §$1,034,392 $1,064,971 § 30,579
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Clare County, Michigan
Council on Aging Fund
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

Year Ended September 30, 2006

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Qriginal Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES
Taxes $ 361,091 $ 414,447 §$ 408922 § (5,525)
Interest 2,449 3,085 5,026 1,941
Other - - 2,000 2,000
TOTAL REVENUES 363,540 417,532 415,948 (1,584}
EXPENDITURES
Current
Health and welfare 429,031 429,031 456,985 (27,954)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (65,491) {11,499) {41,037) (29,538)
Fund balance, beginning of year 124,050 124,050 124,050 -0-
Fund balance, end of year $ 58559 §$112551 § 83013 § {29,538)
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Fund Descriptions

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for revenue from specific revenue sources (other than major capital
projects) and related expenditures, which are restricted for specific purposes by administrative action or law.

Parks and Recreation {208) - This Fund was established for the development, maintenance and operation of the
Clare County parks and recreation activities. Funding is provided fram the General Fund appropriations, State
grants, and user charges.

Friend of the Court Medical Grant {214) - This Fund accounts for the operations of the Friend of the Court
Medical Support Enforcement Grant.

Friend of the Court {215} - This Fund accounts for the operations of the Friend of the Court activities the Co-
operative Reimbursement Grant.

Public Building and improvement {245} - This Fund is used to account for earmarked revenues set aside for
public improvements. Funding is provided from General Fund appropriations.

Building Department {248} - This Fund is used to account for building and electrical inspections activities.
Funding is generated from inspection fees.

Register of Deed Autcmation (256} - This Fund is utilized to account for rescurces received which are utilized to
add technology and automation to the Register of Deeds Office,

911 Service (261) - This Fund is used to account for emergency dispatch operations. Funding is generated from
landline and cell phone fees and the balance from a special millage.

Local Corrections Officers Training {(264) - This Fund is used to account for corrections training funds received
through Public Act 302.

Drug Law Enforcement (265) - This Fund is used to account for earmarked revenue set aside for drug law
enforcement under the provisions of Public Act 135 of 1985.

Law Library {269} - This Fund is used to account for amounts available for the County’s law library.

Social Welfare {(290) - This Fund is used to account for monies from State and local funding sources and to
assist with the welfare program, which offers aid to disadvantaged individuals of Clare County.

Child Care-Probate (281} - This Fund is used to account for care of delinquent youth under the control of the
Probate Court. Primary funding comes from State and County appropriations, and is used to aid delinquent
children who require placement outside of their home,

Child Care DHS {292) - This Fund is used to account for revenues and expenditures generated through
providing childcare neglect welfare services by the Family Independence Agency {(recently renamed the
Department of Human Services).

Soldiers and Sailors Relief (293} - This Fund is used to account for emergency relief provided to eligible
veterans. Funding comes from a General Fund appropriation.

Velerans Trust {294) - This Fund is used to account for monies received from the State and distributed to needy
veterans. This Fund was established under Section 35.607 of the 1870 Michigan Compiled Laws.

Airport {295) - This Fund is used to account for revenues and expenditures for maintenance, operation and
construction of the County's airport operations. Rental income is the primary revenue source.

-59.



Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Fund Descriptions - Gontinued

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources and payment of general obligation
bond principal and interest from governmental resources.

Jail Building {366) - This Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources for payment of principal and interest
on bonds issued to finance most recent jail building projects for the County of Clare. The source of funds is an
appropriation from the General Fund, which receives out-county bed rental revenue.

Building Authority Refunding Debt (370} - This Fund was established to account for the accumulation of
resources for payment of principal and interest on bonds issued to finance the building projects for the County of
Clare. Funds come from a General Fund appropriation.

CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

Capital Projects Funds account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of major
capital facilities which are not financed by proprietary funds. Capital projects are funded primarily by general
obligation bonds.

Animal Shelter Improvement {413} - This Fund is used to account for revenues generated from a millage to
construct and equip the County's animal control facility.

Jail Construction {466} - This Fund is used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition,
construction, and maintenance of the current jail facilities and new Central Dispatch addition.
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Clare County, Michigan
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

September 30, 2006

Special
Friend of the Friend
Parks and Court of the
Recreation Medical Grant Court
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 54,852 § 15688 § 47,897
Investments - - -
Due from other governmental units
Federal/State - - 33,310
Local - - -
TOTAL ASSETS $ 54852 § 15,688 & 81,207
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANGCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 120 & - 5 927
Accrued wages - - 8,347
Deferred revenue 37,030 - -
Advance from State - 683 -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 37,150 683 9,274
FUND BALANCES
Reserved for
Debt service - - -
Capital projects - - -
Undesignated, reported in
Special revenue funds 17,702 15,005 71,933
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 17,702 15,005 71,933
TOTAL LIABILITIES
AND FUND BALANCES $ 54852 B 15688 § 81,207
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Revenue

Local
Public Register Corrections
Building and Building of Deeds 911 Officers
Improvement Department Automation Service Training
$ 58684 § 35224 $ 129452 § 19,547 12,589
- - - 29,349 -
- - - 12,245 -
$ 58684 $ 35224 § 129452 % 61,141 12,589
3 - § 340 § 138 % 3,727 -
- 4,673 - 10,928 -
-0- 5,013 138 14,655 -0-
58,684 - - - -
- 30,211 129,314 46,486 12,589
58,684 30,211 129,314 46,486 12,589
$ 58684 $ 35224 & 1429452 § 61,141 12,589
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Clare County, Michigan
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - CONTINUED

September 30, 2006

Special
Drug Law Social
Enforcement Law Library Welfare
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 9541 § 1133 % 58,273
Investments - - -
Due from other governmental units
Federal/State - - 40,757
Local - - -
TOTAL ASSETS 3 9,541 § 1133 8 99,030
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ - % - 8 15,817
Accrued wages - - -
Deferred revenue - - 1,918
Advance from State - - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES -0- -0- 17,735
FUND BALANCES
Reserved for
Debt service - - -
Capital projects - - -
Undesignated, reported in
Special revenue funds 9,541 1,133 81,295
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 9,541 1,133 81,295
TOTAL LIABILITIES
AND FUND BALANCES 3 9541 § 1,133 & 99,030
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Revenue

Soldiers &
Child Care Child Care Sailors Veterans
Probate DHS Relief Trust Airport
$ 191059 $ 4005 § 11,934 123 % 26,271
20,722 - - - -
3 211,781 $ 4,005 % 11,934 123 % 26,271
$ 26,889 % 12844 % 78 84 % 5,206
26,889 12,844 78 84 5,206
184,892 28,161 11,856 39 21,065
184,892 28,161 11,856 39 21,065
$ 211,781 $ 41005 § 11,934 123 % 26,271
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Clare County, Michigan
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - CONCLUDED

September 30, 2006

Debt Service Capital
Building
Authority Animal
Jail Refunding Shelter
Building Debt Improvement
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 15 § 748 % 43,886
Investments - - 311,636
Due fram other governmental units
Federal/State - - -
Local - - -
TOTAL ASSETS $ i5 % 748 % 355,622
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ - $ - 8 -
Accrued wages - - -
Deferred revenue - - -
Advance from State - - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES -0- -0- -0-
FUND BALANCES
Reserved for
Debt service 15 748 -
Capital projects - - 355,522
Undesignated, reported in
Special revenue funds - - -
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 15 748 355,622
TOTAL LIABILITIES
AND FUND BALANCES $ 15 & 748 % 355,522
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Projects

Jail
Construction

Total
Nonmajor
Governmental
Funds

$ 118,429

$ 876,350
311,636

124,138
12,245

$ 118,429

$ 1,324,369

$ 68,170
23,948
38,948

683

116,429

131,749

763
530,635

661,222

116,429

1,192,620

$ 118,429

$ 1,324,369




Clare County, Michigan
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

Year Ended September 30, 2006

Special

Friend of the Friend
Parks and Court of the
Recreation Medical Grant Court

REVENUES
Taxes 3 - % - % -
Licenses and permits - -
[Intergovernmental - Federal/State 2,500 - 238,184
Charges for services 1,500 - 43,097
Fines and forfeits - - -
Interest and rents - - -
Other - - -

TOTAL REVENUES 4,000 -0- 281,281

EXPENDITURES

Current
General government - - 276,965
Public safety - - -
Public works - - -
Health and welfare -
Recreation and cultural 25,208 - -

Debt service - - -

Capital outlay - - -

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 25,208 -0- 276,965

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES (21,208) -0- 4,316

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 7,060 - 12,166
Transfers out - - -

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING

SOURCES (USES) 7,060 -0- 12,166

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES {14,148) -0- 16,482
Fund balances, beginning of year 31,850 15,005 55,451
Fund balances, end of year 3 17,702 $ 15006 § 71,933

-67 -



Revenue

Local
Public Register Corrections
Building and Building of Deeds 911 Officers
Improvement Department Automation Service Training
3 - % - % - 5 - % -
- 152,753 - - -
- - 56,315 282,293 5,940
4,050 - 3,949 - -
4,050 152,753 60,264 282,293 5,940
- - 52,936 - -
- 193,398 - 452,018 2,504
37,790 - - - -
37,790 193,398 52,936 452,016 2,504
(33,740) (40,645) 7,328 {169,723) 3,436
- - - 128,478 -
-0- -0- -0- 128,478 -0-
(33,740) (40,645) 7,328 (41,245) 3,436
92,424 70,856 121,986 87,731 9,153

$ 58,684 % 30211 § 129314 § 46486 § 12,589
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Clare County, Michigan

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - CONTINUED

Year Ended September 30, 2006

REVENUES
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental - Federal/State
Charges for services
Fines and forfeits
Interest and rents
Other

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

Current
General government
Public safety
Public works
Health and welfare
Recreation and cultural

Debt service

Capital outlay

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
Fund balances, beginning of year

Fund balances, end of year

Special
Drug Law Social

Enforcement Law Library Welfare
$ -3 . -
2,305 3,500 -
220 - 253,532
2,525 3,500 253,532
- 3,875 -
4,754 - -
- - 218,485
4,754 3,875 218,485
(2,229) (375) 35,047
- - 10,000
-0- -0- 10,000
{(2,229) (375) 45,047
11,770 1,608 36,248
$ 9541 § 1,133 81,295
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Revenue

Soldiers &
Child Care Child Care Sailors Veterans
Probate DHS Relief Trust Airport

$ - % - 8 - % - % -
109,918 80,503 - 2,064 -

- - - - 8,430

83 - - - -

110,001 80,503 -0- 2,064 8,430

- - - - 18,071

433,264 164,527 10,980 3,138 -
433,264 164,527 10,980 3,138 18,071
(323,263) (84,024) (10,980) (1,074} (9,641)
375,000 75,000 - - -
375,000 75,000 -0- (- -Q-
51,737 (9,024) {10,980) {1,074) {9,641)
133,155 37,185 22,836 1,113 30,706

3 184882 § 28,161 $ 11,866 § 39 $ 21,065
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Clare County, Michigan

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - CONCLUDED

Year Ended September 30, 2006

REVENUES
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental - Federal/State
Charges for services
Fines and forfeits
Interest and rents
Other

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

Current
General government
Public safety
Public works
Health and welfare
Recreation and cultural

Debt service

Capital cutlay

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
{UNDER}) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOQURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
Fund balances, beginning of year

Fund balances, end of year

Debt Service Capital
Building
Authority Animal
Jail Refunding Shelter
Building Debt Improvement
$ - § - 8 247
- - 11,636
-0- -0- 11,883
- - 25
476,090 112,520 -
- - 24,5651
476,090 112,520 24,576
(476,090) (112,520) {12,693)
476,090 112,220 -
476,090 112,220 -0-
-0- (300) (12,693)
15 1,048 368,215
$ 15 8 748 § 355,522
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Projects

Total
Nenmajor
Jail Governmental
Construction Funds

$ 302,010 § 302,257
- 152,753

- 433,169

- 389,145

- 5,805

3,514 31,579

- 253,835

305,524 1,668,543

- 333,801

- 652,672

- 18,071

- 830,394

- 25,208

- 588,610

750,530 812,871
750,530 3,261,627
{445,006} (1,693,084)
550,000 1,746,014
{115,000) {115,000)
435,000 1,631,014
{10,006) {62,070)
126,435 1,254,690

$ 116,429 % 1,192,620




Clare County, Michigan
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES BY FUND - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Year Ended September 30, 2006

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Parks and Recreation
REVENUES
Intergovernmental
Local $ 2,250 $ 10,816 & 2,500 $ (8,316)
Charges for services - 1,500 1,500 -0-
TOTAL REVENUES 2,250 12,316 4,000 (8,316)
EXPENDITURES
Current
Recreation and cultural 94,452 104,518 25,208 79,310
EXCESS OF REVENUES
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES {92,202) (92,202) (21,208) 70,994
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in 7,060 7,060 7,060 -0-
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE {85,142) {85,142} {14,148) 70,994
Fund balance, beginning of year 31,850 31,850 31,850 -0-
Fund balance, end of year $ (53,292) § (53,292) & 17,702 3 70,994
Friend of the Court Medical Grant
REVENUES
Intergovernmental - Federal/State 3 - 3 - % - 8 -0-
EXPENDITURES
Current
General government - - - -0-
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -0- -0- -0- -0-
Fund balance, beginning of year 15,005 15,005 15,005 -0-
Fund balance, end of year $ 15005 § 15005 § 15005 § -0-
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Clare County, Michigan
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES BY FUND - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - CONTINUED

Year Ended September 30, 2006

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Qriginal Final Actual {Negative)
Friend of the Court
REVENUES
Intergovernmental - Federal/State $ 249,286 $ 249,286 § 238,184 §  (11,102)
Charges for services 26,300 26,300 43,097 16,797
TOTAL REVENUES 275,586 275,586 281,281 5,695
EXPENDITURES
Current
General government 283,026 283,901 276,965 6,936
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES (7.440) (8,315) 4,316 12,631
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in 12,166 12,166 12,166 -0-
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 4,726 3,851 16,482 12,631
Fund balance, beginning of year 55,451 55,451 55,451 -0-
Fund balance, end of year $ 60177 $ 59,302 $ 71,933 $ 12,631

Public Building and Improvement

REVENUES
Interest $ 3000 $ 3000 S 4050 3% 1,050
EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay 3,000 40,790 37,790 3,000
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -0- (37,790) (33,740) 4,050
Fund balance, beginning of year 92,424 92,424 92,424 -0-
Fund balance, end of year $ 092424 § 54634 $ 58684 I 4,050
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Clare County, Michigan

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES BY FUND - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - CONTINUED

Year Ended September 30, 2006

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual {Negative)
Building Department
REVENUES
Licenses and permits & 198,457 $ 166,650 $ 152,753 $ (13,897)
EXPENDITURES
Current
Public safety 213,526 219,356 193,398 25,958
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE {15,069) (52,706) (40,645) 12,061
Fund balance, beginning of year 70,856 70,856 70,856 -0-
Fund balance, end of year $ 55787 & 18150 & 30,214 $ 12,061
Register of Deeds Automation
REVENUES
Charges for services $ 55,000 $ 55000 § 56315 § 1,315
Interest 1,700 1,700 3,949 2,249
TOTAL REVENUES 56,700 56,700 60,264 3,564
EXPENDITURES
Current
General government 54,500 54,500 52,936 1,564
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 2,200 2,200 7.328 5128
Fund balance, beginning of year 121,986 121,986 121,986 -0-
Fund balance, end of year $ 124,186 $ 124,186 $ 129,314 3 5,128
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Clare County, Michigan

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES BY FUND - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - CONTINUED

Year Ended September 30, 2006

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Qriginal Final Actual (Negative)
911 Service
REVENUES
Charges for services $ 283,000 $ 349,757 § 282283 § (67.464)
Taxes 133,695 133,695 - (133,695)
TOTAL REVENUES 416,695 483,452 282,293 (201,159)
EXPENDITURES
Current
Public safety 431,587 466,464 452,016 14,448
EXCESS OF REVENUES OQVER
{UNDER) EXPENDITURES (14,892) 16,988 {169,723) (186,711}
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers - {36,917) 128,478 165,395
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE {14,892) (19,929) (41,245) (21,316)
Fund balance, beginning of year 87,731 87,731 87,731 -0-
Fund balance, end of year $ 72839 § 67802 § 46486 & (21,316)
Local Corrections Officers Training
REVENUES
Charges for services $ 5000 & 5000 § 5940 % 940
EXPENDITURES
Current
Public safety 5,000 5,000 2,504 2,496
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -0- -0- 3,436 3,436
Fund balance, beginning of year 3,153 9,153 9,153 -0-
Fund balance, end of year $ 91453 % 9153 § 12589 § 3.436
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Clare County, Michigan

Nonmaijor Special Revenue Funds

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES BY FUND - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - CONTINUED

Year Ended September 30, 2006

Variance with

REVENUES
Fines and forfeits
Other
Sale of assets

TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES
Current
Public safety
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

REVENUES
Fines and forfeits

EXPENDITURES
Current
General government

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

Fund balance, beginning of year

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Drug Law Enforcement

$ 270 $ 2920 § 2305 § {615)
- - 220 220
2,700 2,920 2,525 (395)
2,700 3,603 4,754 {1,061}
-0- (773) (2,229) (1,456}

11,770 11,770 11.770 -0-

$ 11,770 $ 10997 § 9,541 3 {1,456)

Law Library

$ 3500 $ 350 $ 350 § -0-
3,500 3,500 3.875 {375)

-0- -0- (375} (375)

1,508 1,508 1,508 -0-

$ 1508 § 1,508 $ 1133 § (375)

Fund balance, end of year
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Clare County, Michigan

Nonmaijor Special Revenue Funds

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES BY FUND - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - CONTINUED

Year Ended September 30, 2006

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Social Welfare Fund
REVENUES
Other $ 259,000 $ 259,000 $ 253,532 $ (5,468)
EXPENDITURES
Current
Health and welfare 269,000 269,000 218,485 50,515
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES (10,000) (10,000) 35,047 45,047
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in 10,000 10,000 10,000 -0-
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -0- -0- 45,047 45,047
Fund balance, beginning of year 36,248 36,248 36,248 -0-
Fund balance, end of year $ 36,248 $ 36,248 $ 81,206 § 45,047
Child Care Probate
REVENUES
Intergovernmental - State $ 75,000 $ 75,000 $ 109,918 % 34,918
Other 1,000 1,000 83 (917)
TOTAL REVENUES 76,000 76,000 110,001 34,001
EXPENDITURES
Current
Health and welfare 526,000 526,000 433,264 92,736
EXCESS OF REVENUES
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES (450,000) (450,000) (323,263) 126,737
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in 375,000 375,000 375,000 -0-
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE {75,000) {75,000} 51,737 126,737
Fund balance, beginning of year 133,155 133,155 133,155 -0-
Fund balance, end of year $ 58,155 $ 58,155 $ 184,892 $ 126,737
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Clare County, Michigan
Nonmaijor Special Revenue Funds

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES BY FUND - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - CONTINUED

Year Ended September 30, 2006

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Child Care DHS
REVENUES
Intergovernmental - State $ 42,000 $ 42000 § 80,5503 & 38,503
EXPENDITURES
Current
Health and welfare 117,000 117,000 164,527 {47,527)
EXCESS OF REVENUES
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES (75,000) {75,000) (84,024) (9,024)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in 75,000 75,000 75,000 -0-
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -0- -0- {9.024) {9,024)
Fund balance, beginning of year 37,185 37,185 37.185 -0-
Fund balance, end of year $ 37185 % 37185 § 28,161 $ (9,024)
Soldiers & Sailors Relief
REVENUES $ -9 - $ -3 -0-
EXPENDITURES
Current
Health and welfare 18,150 18,150 10,980 7,170
EXCESS OF REVENUES (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES {18,150) (18,150) {10,980) 7,170
OTHER FINANCING SCQURCES
Transfers in 18,150 38,486 - (38.486)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -0- 20,336 (10,280) (31,316}
Fund balance, beginning of year 22,836 22,836 22,836 -0-
Fund balance, end of year $ 22836 § 43172 % 1185 § (31,316)
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Clare County, Michigan
Nonmajor Speciat Revenue Funds

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES BY FUND - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - CONCLUDED

Year Ended September 30, 2006

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Qriginal Final Actual (Negative)
Veterans Trust
REVENUES
Intergovernmental - State $ 4,704 $§ 4,704 $ 2,064 E (2,640)
EXPENDITURES
Current
Health and welfare 4,704 4,704 3,138 1,666
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -0- -0- (1,074) (1,074)
Fund balance, beginning of year 1,113 1,113 1,113 -0-
Fund balance, end of year $ 1113 § 1113 8 32 3% {1,074)
Airport
REVENUES
Intergovernmental - State $ - § 888 3% - 8 (8,885)
Interest and rents 8.880 8,880 8,430 (450)
TOTAL REVENUES 8,880 17,765 8,430 (9,335)
EXPENDITURES
Current
Public works 15,170 24,055 18,071 5,984
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (6,290) (6,290} (9,641) (3,351)
Fund balance, beginning of year 30,706 30,706 30,706 -0-
Fund batance, end of year $ 24416 § 24416 § 21,066 & {3,351)
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Internal Service Funds
Fund Descriptions

Internal Service Funds are used to track activity related to cost centers that management desires to keep
separate for internal reporting purposes. Internal Service Funds are funded mainly by charges for service paid
by other funds of the government.

Technology (644) - This Fund was created to account for software and hardware updates to the County’s phone
system’s voice mail component and the County's computer network electronic mail component.

Health _[nsurance (677) - This Fund was established to account for employee and eligible retiree health

insurance activity self-funded with Blue Cross/Blue Shield via an Administrative Services Contract that includes
stop loss coverage for any single health claim that exceeds $50,000.
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Clare County, Michigan
Internal Service Funds
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS

September 30, 2006

Total
Internal
Health Service
Technology Insurance Funds
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3 4,026 $ 139,471 $ 143,497
Prepaids - 122,323 122,323
Total current assets 4,026 261,794 265,820
Noncurrent assets
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 28,650 - 28,650
TOTAL ASSETS 32,676 261,794 294,470
LIABILITIES
Deferred revenue - 83,933 83,933
NET ASSETS
Unrestricted $ 32,676 $ 177,861 $ 210,537
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Clare County, Michigan

Internal Service Funds

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

Year Ended September 30, 2006

Total
Internal
Health Service
Technology Insurance Funds
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services 5 - % 1203129 % 1,203,129
OPERATING EXPENSES
Health insurance - 1,117,984 1,117,984
Depreciation 14,324 - 14,324
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 14,324 1,117,984 1,132,308
INCOME BEFORE TRANSFERS {14,324) 175,145 160,821
TRANSFERS IN 47,000 - 47,000
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 32,676 175,145 207.821
Net assets, beginning of year - 2,716 2,718
Net assets, end of year $ 32676 $ 177,861 $ 210,537
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Clare County, Michigan

internal Service Funds

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended September 30, 2006

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash receipts from customers
Cash paid to suppliers
Cash paid for employee services and benefits

NET CASH (USED) BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers in
Purchase of capital assets

NET CASH PROVIDED BY CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Reconciliation of operating income {loss} to net
cash (used) by operating activities
Operating income {loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash (used) by operating aclivities
Depreciation
Decrease in due from other governmental units
Decrease in prepaids
(Decrease} in deferred revenue
(Decrease) in advance from other funds

NET CASH (USED) BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
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Total

Internal

Health Service

Technology Insurance Funds
$ - $ 1,203,537 $ 1,293,537
- {250,000) (250,000)
- {1,088,671) {1,088,671)
-0- (45,134) (45,134)
47,000 - 47.000
{42,974) - (42,974)
4,026 ~0- 4,026
4,026 (45,134) (41,108}
- 184,605 184,605
$ 4,026 $ 138,471 $ 143,497
$ (14,324) § 175145 & 160,821
14,324 - 14,324
- 1,558 1,558
- 29,313 29,313
- (1,150} (1,150)
- (250,000} {250,000)
$ -0- $ {45,134) § (45,134}




Agency Funds
Fund Descriptions

Agency Funds account for assets held by the County in a trustee or agency capacity for individuals, private
organization, other governmental units and/or other funds.

Trust_and Agency (701} - This Fund was established to account for monies received by the County for later
distribution to other agencies or persons.

Library {721) - This Fund was established under Act 236 of 1961 to account for monies from District Court fines,
which are received monthly for operations of the County's libraries.
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Clare County, Michigan
Agency Funds
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

September 30, 2006

Agency Funds

Trust and
Agency Library Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 3 2,038,143 $ 46,911 $ 2,085,054
Investments 20,501 - 20,501
Due from others 815 - 815
TOTAL ASSETS $ 2,059,459 $ 46,911 $ 2,106,370
LIABILITIES
Due to other governmental units
Federal/State $ 1,621,097 3 - $ 1,621,097
Local 840 46,911 47,751
Due to individuals and agencies 437,522 - 437,522
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 2,059,459 $ 46,911 3 2,106,370
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Clare County, Michigan

Agency Funds

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Due from others

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Due to other governmental units
Federal/State
Local
Due to individuals and agencies

TOTAL LIABILITIES

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Due from others

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Due to other governmental units
Federal/State
Local
Due to individuals and agencies

TOTAL LIABILITIES

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

LIABILITIES
Due to other governmental units
Local

Year Ended September 30, 2006

Balance Balance

October 1, 2005 Additions Deductions  September 30, 2006
All Agency Funds

$ 2,172,492 $20,069,635 $20,147073 § 2,085,054

20,501 - - 20,501

467 815 467 815

3 2,193,460 $20,060,450 $20,147,540 % 2,106,370

$ 2,036,318 §$ 5952076 § 6,367,297 $ 1,621,097

47,361 543,835 543,445 47,751

109,781 13,564,539 13,236,798 437,522

5 2,193,460 $20,060,450 $20,147,540 & 2,106,370

Trust and Agency Fund

$ 2,125,720 $19,6525,342 $19,612919 § 2,038,143

20,501 - - 20,501

467 815 467 815

) 2,146,688 $19,526,157 $19,613,386 % 2,059,459

3 2036,318 $ 5952076 $ 6367297 $ 1,621,097

589 9,542 9,291 840

109,781 13,564,539 13,236,798 437,622

$ 2,146,688 $19,526,157 $19,613.386 $ 2,059,459

Library Fund
$ 46,772 $ 534293 $ 534154 $ 46,811
$ 46,772 § 534293 $§ 534,154 § 48,911
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Clare County, Michigan
Component Unit Funds
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - DRAINAGE DISTRICTS

September 30, 2006

Capital
Drain Lake Lake Level
Drain Revolving Level Revalving
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 67806 § 7134 § 28597 $ 17,733
Due from other funds - 22,561 - 35,757
Special assessments receivable 146,060 - - -
TOTAL ASSETS $ 213956 % 29695 § 28597 $ 53,490
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES {DEFICITS)
LIABILITIES

Accounts payable $ 1,077 8 - 8 845 § -
Advances from other governmental units 7,500 29,695 - 53,490
Deferred revenue 152,402 - - -
Due to other funds 22,561 - 35,757 -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 183,540 29,695 36,602 53,490

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)
Designated for capital projects 30,416 - - -
Unreserved - undesignated - - {8,005) -
TOTAL FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS) 30,416 - (8,005) -

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS) $ 213,956 $ 29695 § 28597 $ 53,490
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Projects
Lake

Improvement
Revolving Total

$ 154,331 § 275,691
- 58,318
- 146,060

$ 154,331 § 480,069

$ -8 1922
179,377 270,062

- 152,402

- 58,318

179,377 482,704

- 30,416

(25,046) (33,051)
(25,046) (2,635)

$ 154331 $ 480,069




Clare County, Michigan
Component Unit Funds

RECONCILIATION OF THE COMBINING BALANCE SHEET TO
THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS - DRAINAGE DISTRICTS

September 30, 2006

Total fund balance (deficit) - governmental funds 3 30,416
Amounts reporied for the governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because:

Long-term receivables are not available to pay for current period expenditures
and are therefore deferred in the funds. These consist of:

Deferred revenue 146,060

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and therefore are not reported as assets in the governmental funds.

The cost of capital assets is $ 1,170,329
Accumulated depreciation is (375,934)
Capital assets, net 794,395

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period
and therefore are not reported as liabilities in the funds.
Long-term liabilities at year-end consist of:

Bonds and loans payable 161,620
Accrued interest payable 3,138
(164,758}
Net assets of governmental activities $ 806,113
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Clare County, Michigan
Cemponent Unit Funds

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGE